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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENESEEEAEBREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HUI Sai Chung, aged 78, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group.

He is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the
Group's business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales
functions of the Group. He has more than 55 years’ experience in the plastics

industry.

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 76, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director
and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations
and administration of the Group. He has more than 55 years' experience in the
plastics industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The

Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. NG Chi Ming, aged 60, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department and Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group.
He is responsible for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology
and key accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in
Textile Chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University's predecessor). He also holds a Master of Engineering Management
degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He joined the Group in 1988
and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has over 36 years'

experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, aged 48, is the General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of
plastic materials in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree
in Civil Engineering from Queen’s University, Ontario, Canada and also holds a
Master degree of Business and Administration from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. He joined the Group in 2004 and has over 20 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kuen is
the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the
brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior management of the subsidiaries
of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (who is the Director of the
Company).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr. HUI Man Wai, aged 55, is the Business Development Manager and is

responsible for market exploration and business development of the Group.
He holds a Master degree of Business and Administration (Executive) from City
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1997 and has over 28 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Man Wai is
the son of Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (who is the Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company).

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 51, is the General Manager of Dongguan
Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Limited and NHH Coltec Limited and is responsible
for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches
for plastic industries in Hong Kong, Guangdong and other cities in Southern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree with honors in Arts (Major in Economics)
from Queen'’s University, Ontario, Canada. He joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 25 years' experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI
Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the
Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior management
of the subsidiaries of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (who is the Director
of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHING Yu Lung, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since 9th February 2009. He is also the chairman of each of the
Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and also the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Ching
currently serves as a financial consultant. He also serves as the Independent
Non-executive Director of each of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (stock
code: 754), Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company
Limited (stock code: 737) and Luzhou Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1983), all of
them are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange™). Mr. Ching was an independent non-executive director
of Termbray Industries International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 93) from
November 2016 to April 2022 which was listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENESEEEAEBREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Ching obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive Master degree in Business
Administration from Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006, respectively. He is
a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and member of American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ching has more than 32 years of

experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting.

Mr. YU Chi Kwong, aged 57, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since Ist April 2020. He is also a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is the
Business Manager of an international insurance company in Hong Kong. He holds
a Bachelor degree of Science with Honours in Applied Chemistry from Hong
Kong Baptist University and a Master degree of Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. He is also a Fellow Chartered Financial Practitioner
and a Chartered Life Practitioner of the Asia Pacific Financial Services
Association. Mr. Yu started the career in plastics industry and had accumulated
more than 20 years’ experiences in the industry, which included holding
managerial positions in various multinational companies for plastic materials sales

and product marketing in Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland.

Ms. LIU Sau Lai, aged 68, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 20th December 2024. She is also a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Liu holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the Hong Kong Metropolitan
University (formerly known as The Open University of Hong Kong). She joined
the Group as an employee in 1977, and had been an Executive Director of the
Company since 1993 and until her retirement in 2018. Thereafter she remained
working with the Group in the capacity of a consultant employed by the
Company until November 2022. With over 37 years of experience in the plastics
industry, Ms. Liu had accumulated deep expertise in plastic materials business,

human resources management and credit control.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (“Mr. Ho”), aged 74, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since Ist April 2003 and resigned on 20th
December 2024. During the tenure, he is also the chairman of each of the
Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Ho is the
managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company, Certified Public Accountants
(Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences and is an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Ho is currently an independent non-executive director
of China Star Entertainment Limited (stock code: 326), a company is listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange").

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Tat Ching ("Mr. Ng"), aged 70, is a Director and President of Ngai
Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong
Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. and Ngai
Hing Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and is responsible for the

overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies.

Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and
an executive director of the above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and

has over 44 years' experiences in plastic industries globally.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng has held several key positions in various
multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales and product

marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 52, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai
and other cities in Eastern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from
University of Toronto. He joined the Group in 1998 and has over 27 years’
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is the
son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the
brother of Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (both are the
Directors of the Company).
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

FREHE




RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group"”) for the year
ended 30th June 2025. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover
of HK$1,348,51 1,000 (2024: HK$1,276,350,000) and profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company of HK$339,000 (2024: loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$18,041,000). Earnings per share for the year
were HKO.09 cent (2024: loss per share of HK4.89 cents). To retain sufficient
capital for future business development, the Board of Directors (the “Board”)

does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

In 2024/2025, the global political and economic environment remained complex
and uncertain, with sluggish external end-market demand prevailing. U.S. tariff
policy remained unclear, disrupting the global supply chain structure. This, plus
the weak market consumption sentiment, made customers more cautious about
placing orders, exerting sustained pressure on the overall operation of the
industry. Facing market challenges and industry competition, the Group upheld
its prudent business philosophy, continued to optimise its product portfolio,
refine clientele structure, seized policy opportunities and advanced diversified
layout to navigate the ebbs and flows of the fluctuating market. For the year
ended 30th June 2025, the Group's total turnover reached HK$1,348,51 1,000
(2024: HK$1,276,350,000), a 5.7% increase against last year.

During the year under review, the Group's overall gross profit increased by 9.6%
to HK$218,491,000 (2024: HK$199,263,000), with gross profit margin up slightly
by approximately 0.6 percentage point year-on-year to 16.2%. Profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company was HK$339,000 (2024: loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company of HK$18,041,000). Basic earnings per share
were HKO0.09 cent (2024: basic loss per share of HK4.89 cents). In addition,
leveraging its precise operational strategies, the Group recorded profit before
income tax of HK$9,470,000 (2024: loss before income tax of HK$4,638,000) for
the year, achieving a turnaround from loss to gain, with operating performance

continuing to improve.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
Business Review (Continued)

To reserve funds for business development, the Board of Directors does not

recommend payment of a final dividend.

Regarding the plastic raw material trading business, the Group actively seized
opportunities presented by favorable national policies, leveraging government
subsidy programs for industries such as automobiles and home appliances
to significantly improve the efficiency of domestic demand turnover, driving
expansion in order volume. Despite the dual impacts of sluggish plastic
material prices and tariff fluctuations, the Group's sales team was able to drive
steady sales growth through strict cost control, cost reduction and efficiency
improvement, as well as enhanced market penetration and active expansion of
new customer sources, thus achieving a | I.1% year-on-year increase in turnover
to HK$857,240,000 (2024: HK$771,942,000) for the business, with gross profit
margin widening by a slight |.| percentage point. Benefiting from profit potential
unleashed, loss before taxation narrowed by 56.3% to HK$15,893,600 (2024:
HK$36,382,000).

During the year, despite the challenges from saturation of domestic production
capacity and rising internal production costs, the colorants, pigments and
compounded plastic resins business showed strong resilience. Government
subsidy policy for the automotive industry also bolstered growth momentum
of the business, and the Group capitalised on the policy tailwinds to deepen
strategic synergy with customers in the automotive application industry.
Traditional businesses, such as food packaging, remained stable and continued to
provide solid support to the business. At the same time, by expanding domestic
sales channels, the Group successfully maintained its overall production scale in
Shanghai and Dongguan, effectively alleviating operating pressure from external
market volatility. During the year, turnover of the colorants, pigments and
compounded plastic resins business was HK$358,179,000, decreased slightly by
2.5% as compared to that in the same period last year (2024: HK$367,439,000),
with gross profit margin also comparable to the same period last year. Profit
before taxation was HK$24,059,000 (2024: HK$25,500,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

The engineering plastic products business is closely tied to the export market
sentiment in Europe and the United States. Affected by tariff policy shocks,
some customers tightened ordering strategies, creating periodic pressure
on engineering plastic order volumes. In view of that, the Group adopted
refined cost control and worked to stabilise its domestic customer base while
expanding the overseas one. During the year, the business recorded turnover of
HK$ 133,092,000 (2024: HK$136,969,000), with gross profit margin increasing
by 2.8 percentage points, and profit before taxation up |.8% year-on-year to
HK$ 11,064,000 (2024: HK$10,868,000). The Group believes that once the tariff
policy becomes stable, the business is expected to further improve operational

efficiency by capitalising on its existing cost advantages and customer base.

Prospects

In the second half of 2025, multiple challenges stemming from geopolitical and
economic environment will persist. The Group will adhere to the strategic
principle of “seeking progress while ensuring stability”, and implement its
layout strategy of “balancing domestic and overseas operations with diversified
synergy".
its existing customer base and attract new customers, the Group will also target

In addition to focusing on and seizing national policy trends to maintain

emerging overseas markets to develop a diversified customer portfolio to

mitigate risks from policy fluctuations in any single market.

Currently, affected by geopolitics and market volatility, some customers slowed
down their ordering pace. Though the short-term visibility is limited, customer
orders have gradually stabilised when compared with the adjustment period in
April this year. The Group will strive to steadily increase order volume, taking
advantage of the domestic supportive policies. For export orders related to
overseas end markets, the Group will actively capture growth opportunities by

optimising production flexibility and customer base structure.

Chairman’s Statement
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Prospects (Continued)

The Group's sales point in Vietnam, completed at the end of June 2024, has
now achieved steady operation, which clearly confirms the strong potential of
the Southeast Asian market. The Group plans to rationally allocate resources
from its existing profitable business and identify regions with a stable investment
environment and ample market potential to prepare for the establishment of

overseas production bases.

Meanwhile, it will also strengthen development of end-customers in Southeast
Asia and Europe to reduce the reliance on the US export chain end, as well as
actively explore development opportunities in industries, such as automobiles
and home appliances, that enjoy national support, deepening innovation in
high-value-added application scenarios to groom new business growth drivers.
Through the three-pronged approach of diversifying “origin of production,
customer sources and business”, the Group will enhance its risk resistance and

improve its sustainable development capabilities.

In addition, as the fluctuations in customer orders also led to frequent
adjustments to production schedules, the Group will continue to optimise
cost management and production plans to enhance the flexibility of capacity
allocation. It will also dynamically adjust inventory strategy to balance the cost
advantages of bulk purchasing and the demand for stocking up for urgent
orders. In the future, the Group will also continue to adopt its prudent financial
management approach and optimise its financing structure to consolidate its

capital strength to cope with numerous changes in the market.

Despite the complex and volatile macro environment fraught with challenges,
under the leadership of a professional management team and the hard work
and dedication of all employees, the Group remains confident in overcoming
difficulties. The Group will adhere to its professional and prudent management
strategy and pragmatic approach, continuously strengthening product innovation
and cost control to steadily enhance core competitiveness. The Group will also
be dedicated to promoting synergistic growth in business scale and profitability,

striving for the best returns for all stakeholders.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow
and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June
2025, the Group has available aggregate banking facilities of approximately
HK$662,792,000 of which approximately HK$355,619,000 have been utilised
and were secured by corporate guarantees issued by the Company and legal
charges on certain property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use
rights, investment properties and restricted bank deposits in Chinese Mainland
|7, and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements). The Group's cash and cash equivalents as
at 30th June 2025 amounted to approximately HK$193,161,000. The Group's
gearing ratio as at 30th June 2025 was approximately 28.2%, which is calculated

and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes |5, 16,

as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings

less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity plus net debt.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent
liabilities are disclosed in Notes 34 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally
denominated in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations
and manages its exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from

time to time.

At 30th June 2025, the maximum notional amount for the outstanding
settlement committed by the Group in respect of forward contracts in order
to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its operations is as

follows:

Chairman’s Statement
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 30th June 2025, the Group had approximately 628 full-time employees.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive
scheme which is geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of
its employees, as an incentive to motivate its employees to increase their
contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social or medical insurance
coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its employees

depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing
support, my fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past
year. The Group will, as always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive
for its long-term development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming

at attaining more promising results in the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2025
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated

financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business and the analysis of the Group's
performance for the year ended 30th June 2025 as well as prospects of the
Group's business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 14
of this Annual Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
There are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent in the market and some are due to

external environment. Major risks and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

(i)  Volatility of economic climate in Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong, which

is closely related to consumption thereto.

In order to mitigate the impact of a weakening economy of Chinese
Mainland, the Group is continuing to expand the overseas markets; and
continues to take a cautious approach in steering the Group forward, and

recognises the need to sustain sales momentum.

(i) Credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their

obligations.
The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade
debtors is prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise

any credit risk associated with receivables.

The Group's other financial risks and uncertainties are set out in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEWV (Continued)

Particulars of Important Events
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the

financial year.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement
the financial disclosures are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 8 to 14 and 70 to 186,
respectively, of this Annual Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance, and Compliance with Relevant Laws
and Regulations

The Group takes its corporate social responsibility to heart, and is fully
committed to making a difference for its staff, the community and the common
good. During the year there are a wide range of activities and campaigns held to

treasure the staff, community and the environment.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland while the Company itself was incorporated in
Bermuda and is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the year ended 30th June 2025 and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations

in the above-mentioned jurisdictions.

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and
Suppliers
() Employees
Recognising that human resources are one of the greatest assets of the
Group, the Group provides a variety of benefits, talent trainings and

development for employees.

(i) Customers
It is the Group's mission to satisfy different customers’ needs and
continues to contribute to the wellbeing of the public by providing plastic
materials which suit the customers’ requirements, which include their

social responsibility and sustainability.
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BUSINESS REVIEWV (Continued)

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and

Suppliers (Continued)

(i) Key suppliers
The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of
suppliers and taken great care to ensure that they share our belief in good
quality and ethics. The Group prudently select suppliers and requires all of

them to comply with our social and environmental responsibility guidelines.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 62.

At a meeting held on 27th February 2025, the Directors resolved not to declare
any interim dividend for the six months ended 31st December 2024.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Notes 30 and 40 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in Note |5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note

29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2025, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$66,481,000 (2024: HK$67,195,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may
not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus,
if there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii)
the realisable value of the company's assets would thereby be less than the

aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 187.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS
On 17th November 2022, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the

20

“Scheme”) and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the Company

on 22nd November 2012. Under the terms of the Scheme, the Directors may, at

their discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share Options to subscribe

for the shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated

therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

0]

(ii)

(i)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options
to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to

the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an
offer to take up Share Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix
Il of the circular issued by the Company on [8th October 2022.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No
Share Option may be granted under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded.
The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share
Options granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any
other option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options)
in any |2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(v)

v)

i

(vir)

(viir)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) may in its absolute discretion determine, save that
such period shall not expire more than 10 years from the date on which a

Share Option is granted and accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of
HKS$ | is payable on acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

Subscription price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option,
(i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option or (iii) the
nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

The remaining life of the Scheme
The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
between [7th November 2022 and [6th November 2032 to offer the

grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

Total number of shares

The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all Share Options (excluding, for this purpose, Share Options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 0% of the Shares in issue as at |7th December 2022
(the “General Mandate Limit"). The maximum number of Shares may be
issued upon exercise of the Options granted under the General Mandate
Limit is 36,920,000 shares. No Share Options have been granted since
the adoption of the Scheme. There is no change in the number of Share
Options available for grant under the Scheme mandate at the beginning

and the end of the financial year.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(ix)  Vesting period
The vesting period for the Share Option in respect of which the offer of
the grant of Share Option made in accordance with the Scheme is made

which shall not be less than twelve (12) months.

No Share Options have been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2025 are set out

in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. NG Chi Ming
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen
Mr. HUI Man Wai
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey
Mr. HO Wai Chi*
(Resigned on 20th December 2024)
Mr. CHING Yu Lung*
Mr. YU Chi Kwong*
Ms. LIU Sau Lai*
(Appointed on 20th December 2024)

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr. HUI Sai Chung, Mr. HUI Man Wai and Mr. YU Chi Kwong retire by rotation

in accordance with clause 84 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

In accordance with clause 83(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms. LIU Sau Lai,
who was appointed after the annual general meeting of the Company held on
21st November 2024, shall hold office until the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting (“AGM") and shall be eligible for re- election at the AGM.

In order to comply with the code provision B.2.3 as set out in Appendix C| of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules™), separate resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company
to approve the further appointment of Ms. LIU Sau Lai as an Independent Non-

executive Director at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive scheme
is to link total compensation for senior management with the achievement of
annual and long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at
competitive industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain
key executives essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive
scheme includes an equity component that is designed to align the long-term
interest of management with those of shareholders. The remuneration package
comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and

incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim
to fairly represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various
committee meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship

fees.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employer within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), every Director

is entitled under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution or
discharge of his or her duties. To the extent permitted by such Ordinance, the
Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of companies

in the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2025, the interest and short positions of each Director and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in

the Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2025

Report of the Directors
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EERRSTRAEREALQT
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EAAEBOEERA R

EHEERR AR

(4&)

R-ZBE-RAFAA=Z+HARTAEREE
0.10BTZERAR

Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BRRAZARAROHE

Personal interests  Corporate interests Family interests ~ Other interests
Name of Directors Espg AR EEER FZEmER Hitri
Mr. HUI Sai Chung FHELE Long Positions 7 A 20,137,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FEE R Long Positions 7 A& 19,850,400 198,803,500 (b) — —
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen SFAREE Long Positions 47 & - - — (0)
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAEEE Long Positions #7 A& — — — (d)
Mr. HUI Man Wai FNEEE Long Positions #f & 250,000 — — (e)
Ms. LIU Sau Lai BAERL Long Positions & 795,000 — — —

Notes: st -

(@) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a (@) ZERMHF 2196721,5008% T3 B Good
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.5% interest (note (e)). Benefit Limited ([ Good Benefit|) #5755 © Ever
In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly. Win Limited ([ Ever Win 1)#57 Good Benefit

DO+ RHERRER (M () ° tesh -
6,000,000 B&A& 1 B Ever Win E#: 358 ©
50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr. Ever Win& & E B | )1 7T 2 & i@ Ik 17
HUI Sai Chung. Mr. HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 50,001 IR ETHERE 45 - ATt IR e A&
class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win LERBS D RS Ever Win AREMR
respectively. BT 0] AR AT B B8 S AR 1) 33,957 IR I 5
% -

(b) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which by ZERHF 2196721,5008% T3 B Good
Evergrow Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.5% interest (note (e)). In Benefit}¥ A& ° Evergrow Company Limited
addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by Evergrow directly. ([Evergrow]) ¥ H Good Benefit® 5

2+ REAEEEeE) - o
2,082,000 &% {5 A Evergrow E#EHF A ©
50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Evergrow & R EE | it 2 & @ Kk »
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong. Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non- 50,000 IR EHETRI A e EH5 A © TR R A&
convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Evergrow. 5 %6 Evergrow AR EETE (BT 7] 5 0]
FEEIE ST 30,823 °
ANNUAL REPORT FERE 24 /25
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

(Continued)

(c) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever
Win holds a 45.5% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are

held by Mr. HUI Yan Kuen.

(d) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever
Win holds a 45.5% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are

held by Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey.

(e)  The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which
held 196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2025, are as follows:

EERRSTHRAEREALQT
s HL AR AR Bt 0% B IR AN
EHEERR AR

(4&)

(©)

(d)

(®

ZERAD P 2 196,721,500 8% 5 B Good
Benefit3# 48 ° Ever Win#8 Good Benefit
Aozl t+tRIGFEESH ()
SN+ 6,000,000 A% AR 17 B3 Ever Win B % £
B o Ever Win BREE | itz E@BRGD
33MEBFTAELERE ©

ZERAD P 2 196,721,500 8% 5 B Good
Benefit3# 48 ° Ever Win#8 Good Benefit
Aozt ARG FEESH ()
SN+ 6,000,000 AR AR 17 B3 Ever Win B # £
B o Ever Win BREE | itz E@BRGD
333MEFTABLERE °

EE Good Beneft(RZE_FHF/~NA
— T HEARAQR 196721500 B )%
KBS

Number Percentage

of shares of holding

Name of Directors BEEHR R EE BEREIL
Mr. HUI Sai Chung Eiguaibtea 4,550 45.5%
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FFEL . 5 A4 4,550 45.5%
Mr. HUI Man Wai FFXE KA 360 3.6%
Others HAth 540 5.4%
10,000 100.0%

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

As at 30th June 2025, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to
an option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the

said non-voting deferred shares.

Report of the Directors

ESEHE

EERRSTRAEREALQT
s HL AR AR Bt 0% B IR AN
EHEERR AR

(4&)

RZZE_RAFANA=+8B " THEEFH
EREEBRHABRARERERELE
PefptEs - Max AR E K T Ngai Hing
(International) Company Limited AJ 88 £
MBI FRRIER D 2 A

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

BFEEREIEEEROEAE
Personal interests Other interests
Name of Directors ESHE AR Hi gz
Mr. HUI Sai Chung AT RE S A4 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FTEI A S A 200,000 50,000 (ii)
Notes: st -

() These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the
subsidiaries of the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust
for the Group as at 30th June 2025, none of the Directors and chief executives
have any beneficial or non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the
Company and associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

()  ZERMDEEver WiniEH ©

(i) ZEMRM B Evergrow A ©

BEXFTHEBERANRAETESUERLS
ARAEBRFBEARAQFTE THEBARMRIE
ABHIN  RZZE-RAFNA=1+H B
BEHFHERIEIDVEEERE 2R
F a0 8% Sl AR IR AT 4B <F Bl () AN A &) R Bt 22
FRIEEMAE  SFZ2RERTHAER
RAATREBEB(EEZLAHRERNE
XV EEVRER ) 2 RAP B EEE R RE
BEPERNABTERE BRI IEE=E
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above:

(a) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or chief executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under
the age of |8 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or

debentures of the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 30th June 2025, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not
been notified of any substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company's issued share capital, other than those of the

Directors and chief executives as disclosed above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major

suppliers are as follows:

29%
79%

The largest supplier

Five largest suppliers combined

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers is less than 13% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th
June 2025 and therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major

customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of
Directors and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of
the group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of
internal controls and risk evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. HO Wai Chi (Resigned on
20th December 2024), Mr. CHING Yu Lung, Mr. YU Chi Kwong and Ms. LIU Sau
Lai (Appointed on 20th December 2024). The Audit Committee has reviewed
with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review
of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2025 with the

Directors.
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Report of the Directors
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2)

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retires and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2025

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF

BEHAZARERE
BERRABFAEHAHER R EER
Mo RAFERZEH  ARATHEAR
NAEZHEBITRAEHIALPREIZ
—+H-

B BREm
R RERE B SR AE G H D EH
B ARBEAERSRIEGAAKREE
BiREE -

RREES

FE
FthER

EB —E_RAFAAZ1+AHE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk
management throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The
Company emphasises on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective

corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out
in Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the
Appendix Cl of the Listing Rules (the "CG Code") throughout the year ended

30th June 2025, except for the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision C.2.| of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
Annual Report, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company has not appointed any individual to be the chief executive. The roles
of the chief executive have been performed collectively by all the executive
Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The Board considers that
this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of
this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when

it thinks appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 of

the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. The Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all
Directors confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings

set out therein during the year.
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EXRELGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed in the
biographies of the Directors on pages 4 to 7 to the annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship between Board
members. The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc
basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the Board held a total
of four regular board meetings, three ad-hoc board meetings and one general

meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set

B
ESRAR EFRRRRESHRERR

ARANMESF S EEHEMNRITMER
MEFRITEFTEIFNTESTNEATR
FOE - RARFRE4ZTENERRE
BERREEIN  EFTENE ZHILEEM
BIRs  m% - RESHMEAR MEH 2R
& -BEFEUEMREEHHER AR
RTARTEE - RFR EFgaH
BUOHRAEREEEEHE  ZABHIES

out below: FEHEA—AREREG - EFSHEKLE
EHEFBOT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings Attendance #%7l  Attendance B3R Attendance
Attendants ) flgRy HERE S2RE EHEAE ASR¥ HERHY
Executive Directors: HITEE .
Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) FTHIREE(EE) 4 4 3 3
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FES LA
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director) (5| F/E# Z B4 ) 4 4 3 3 I I
Mr. NG Chi Ming REARE 4 4 3 3 | |
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen BN i 4 4 3 3 | |
Mr. HUI Man Wai AXERE 4 4 3 3 | |
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey FARLE 4 4 3 3 | |
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTEE:
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul MESEE
(Resigned on 20th December 2024) (RZZE-—IF
TZAZTREE) 2 2 2 0 | |
Mr. CHING Yu Lung IEMBELE 4 4 3 0 | |
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REXKE 4 3 0 | |
Ms. LIU Sau Lai BABLL
(Appointed on 20th December 2024) (RZZ-mF
TZAZTRERE) 2 2 0 0 0
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance (Continued)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across
the Board and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-
third of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least
one of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or financial management expertise. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 7 to the Annual Report, which

demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
Independent Non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent within the definition of

the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its

approval. The principal functions of the Board are:

®  to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company

and set the objectives of the management;

® to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment

proposals;
®  to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

®  to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,

risk management, financial reporting and compliance.

Corporate Governance Report
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EXRELGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on
a going concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2025, and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2025, the members of the Board have selected
appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new and amended
accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2025, have applied them consistently
with previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made

are prudent and reasonable.

During the year ended 30th June 2025, the management provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision D.|.2
of the CG Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 59 to
61.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr. HUI Sai Chung, Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, Mr. NG Chi
Ming, Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, Mr. HUI Man Wai, Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey,
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Resigned on 20th December 2024), Mr. CHING Yu
Lung, Mr. YU Chi Kwong and Ms. LIU Sau Lai (Appointed on 20th December
2024) have participated in continuous professional development by engaging in
business activities beneficial to the Company in their respective fields, including
attending seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered by professional
bodies and self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as

to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. During the year
ended 30th June 2025 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has arranged to provide the Directors with briefing on the amendments to the

Listing Rules and self-studying materials.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been
complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual

basis.

Director’s Nomination Policy
The Director's nomination policy of the Company was adopted by the Board
and became effective on [st January 2019 and the nomination committee of the

Company (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible for execution.

Director Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying director
candidates, including recommendations from Board members, management,
and headhunters. The Nomination Committee may also put forward director
candidates who are not nominated by Board members. In addition, the
Nomination Committee will consider director candidates properly submitted
by shareholders of the Company through formal procedures set out in the
Company's Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing
director candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and

recommendation.

All director candidates, including incumbents and candidates nominated by
shareholders of the Company are evaluated by the Nomination Committee
based upon the Director’s qualifications. While director candidates will be
evaluated on the same criteria, the Nomination Committee retains the discretion
to establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary based on the
composition, skill sets, and experiences of the collective Board rather than on

the individual candidate.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of director candidates by the Nomination Committee to stand
for election at any general meeting. The Board will take such recommendations
under advisement and is responsible for designating the director candidates to
be elected at the annual general meeting of the Company and electing Directors

to fill Board vacancies.
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EXRELGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Procedure for Appointment of New Director

Director candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal information
in a prescribed form, together with their written consent to be appointed as a
Director and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any documents
or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for

election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of new Director and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
director candidate, evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as
set out below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for

directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable director candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall rank them by order of preference based on the needs of the

Company and reference check of each director candidate (where applicable).

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder of the Company for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee shall evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as set out
below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall make
recommendation to shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed

election of Director at the general meeting (where applicable).

A director candidate is allowed to withdraw his/her candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the company

secretary of the Company.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not
assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the

general meeting.

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General Meeting

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and service
to the Company of the retiring Directors including their attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings, and the level of participation

and performance on the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General Meeting (Continued)
The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine whether the

retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria as set out below.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make recommendation
to the shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed re-election of

Directors at the general meeting.

Director Selection Criteria
The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications are at a
minimum to be required of a director candidate in recommending to the Board

potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:
(a)  the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

(b)  proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and the ability

to exercise sound business judgment;

() qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and

experience that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

(d) the ability to assist and support management and make significant

contributions to the Company's success;

(e) the contribution on diversity of the Board and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board;

() an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required of a
member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy necessary
to diligently carry out those responsibilities; and

(g) meet the “independence” criteria as required under the Listing Rules and

the composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the

Listing Rules from time to time (where applicable).

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria for director
candidate, although the Nomination Committee may also consider such other
factors as it may deem to be in the best interests of the Company and the

shareholders of the Company.
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EXRELGRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Nomination Committee was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.
Its written terms of reference were updated in June 2025 to comply with
the new requirement of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee consists
of all Independent Non-executive Directors and an Executive Director. The

composition and attendance record of the Nomination Committee are as

REZEE

AR
REZEEN_E——_F=A=-+XAR
BE TR TR B B o HEE®
BoRENTARZE_RAFSAAELE
e RPZEGHIBEYIENTESR
—HBWITEFMEK - HEK KR ACE S
T~

follows:
Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HEEBRE percentage
Attendants HEE R HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) B EAE(ZESL/E)
(Resigned on 20th December 2024) (RZZEZWFE+= A=+ HETE) 212 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung (Committee Chairman) TRWBEXE(ZESLE)
(Appointed on 20th December 2024) (RZZB-WF+-_A-+RHEEZE) 4/4 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REHTE 4/4 100%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung P RE S A4 4/4 100%
Ms. LIU Sau Lai BHEEX L
(Appointed on 20th December 2024) (RZEZNF+—AZ+HEZMT) 212 100%
Role and Function ARRBE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
at least annually, assist the Board in maintaining a Board skills matrix and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated
for directorships; assessing the independence of independent non- executive
Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee would review the Board's
composition from time to time where Board diversity would be considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of services.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ REITHRDF

Tﬁ%ééféﬁﬁ LEFRIEEEN

g REREES (BRI MEEE
) HHEFERREFERER T
WEMERZEERESTSRLER 35
AR EERRRESERENEARILE
REKAEZTNEAELHREAMNESS
FHEEES  FEBUIFNTESHIE
Vi RREREFNRERBREIRE
EMEEHECHBEARNESSRMHR
& RAZBETHRIEFEZHEX
REEHTEEEREEFEREZ T B
BARNMER - Fik - UEERHAEES -
Tk - BELR - KB MBI MRS S



NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held four
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2025 to review the structure, size and

composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee also reviewed and considered that the following
key features or mechanisms under the Company's governance structure are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the
Board:

i In assessing the suitability of Director candidates, the Nomination
Committee will review their profiles, including their qualification and time
commitment, having regard to the Board's composition, the Directors’ skill
matrix, the list of selection criteria approved by the Board, the director

nomination policy and the board diversity policy.

. Independent non-executive Directors receive fixed fee(s) for their roles as

members of the Board and Board Committee(s) as appropriate.

®  The Nomination Committee reviews annually each Director's time
commitment to the Company's business. Directors’ attendance records in
the year are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report contained in
this Annual Report.

. Independent non-executive Directors’ independence is assessed upon
appointment, annually, and at any other time where the circumstances

warrant reconsideration.

® The Company provides guidance to Directors on avoiding conflicts of
interest and on the circumstances under which appropriate action(s) shall

be taken by a Director in conflict.

. To facilitate proper discharge of their duties, all Directors are entitled to
seek advice from the Group's company secretary or the in-house legal
team as well as from independent professional advisers at the Company's

expense.
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EXRELGRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has updated a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in
July 2022 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of

diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service.

The Board has reviewed the current composition and is committed to achieve
gender diversity on the Board by maintaining an appropriate level of female
members on the Board and to provide the Company with a good balance and
diversity of skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of its business.
The Board has appointed a female Director on 20th December 2024. The
Board will continue to review its composition from time to time taking into

consideration specific needs for the Group's business.

Independence

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong element of
independence in the Board. The independent non-executive Directors shall be

of sufficient caliber and stature for their views to carry weight.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ REITHRDF

REZES#®)
EEEMESTBE
EEEREN T —ELAEREEe
MESTIRE(EEERE S TR
%) BRINEEENE S TLEEN
ik o

REDAHENIEER  ARARES
ERMADRZ AR EIRIKB R
FERABEERNAR IR -EFEM
BLZEHURAES BRA - AHEZBA
EBRATBGRERIBREFEREZ T
fEig s -

EEBEFGZERN EFEXEZT
fee itz @y mETEE - BRETRR
Rl F8 - XEMHEBER EEK
B~ BeE - ABIA R RIS ER -

EEgC RN EAMNKEAEURB IR
EEERPBEEKINZEKNBUAERE
EgHRZnlt  WREDNAERNARER
FIBmaE kLT b REENEs - E5E
ER-ZE-_MF+-_A-+HBZE—

MEL -EFeEERLASENELT
ETERNEKNEAS -

3t
EERPHRTEE  FNTES - LARE
THBITEENAEBRBIE - AR
FERARBRENBIM - BUFNTE
FRABTSABREE  HERAAY
27 -



NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Gender and age

The Company is committed to maintaining an environment of respect for people
regardless of their gender in all business dealings and achieving a workplace
environment free of harassment and discrimination on the basis of gender,
physical or mental state, race, nationality, religion, age or family status. The same
principle is applied to the selection of potential candidates for appointment to
the Board.

Skills and experience

The Board members should possess a balance of skills appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group, including the independent non-
executive Directors possessing professional accounting and other qualifications.
The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and management backgrounds
that taken together provide the Group with considerable experience in a range
of activities including varied industries, education, government, investment and

the professions.

Measurable Objectives
[ The Company should comply with the requirements on board composition

under the Listing Rules from time to time.

2. The number of independent non-executive Directors should be not less
than three and one-third of the Board.

3. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

4. At least one Director should be the professional or have intensive

experience of the industry on which the business of the Group is.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Board Diversity

Policy had been met.
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EXRELGRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition
The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was established
in January 1999 with written terms of reference in accordance with the

requirements of the Stock Exchange. Its written terms of reference were

BEREES

AR

ERZBEERN —NNANF— ARBB AR
MEMBERERY - HRESEDS R =
Z_RFENARBHTANELER - B

updated in June 2025 to comply with the new requirement of the CG Code. ZECHTRBEYIIFNTERENK - B
The Audit Committee consists of all Independent Non-executive Directors. The ZEGZHEKRTFELENT
composition and attendance record of the Audit Committee are as follows:
Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESERE percentage
Attendants HEE /S BRE HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) {EE R E(ZELEE)
(Resigned on 20th December 2024) (RZE_NF+A=+HET) 1/ 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung (Committee Chairman) 1RWBEEE(ZE 2 F/E)
(Appointed on 20th December 2024) (RZZZNF+=A=+HERE) 3/3 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REFHEE 3/3 100%
Ms. LIU Sau Lai BHEBLZL
(Appointed on 20th December 2024) (RZZZNF+=A=+HERE) 212 100%
Role and Function AGRBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reporting, risk management and internal control procedures
as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of

the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given

below are the main duties of the Audit Committee:

(@) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the

nature and scope of the audit;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)
(c) to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission

to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i)  financial reporting and accounting policies and practices and any
changes in these policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards;
(vi) compliance with Listing Rules, other applicable rules and legal

requirements in relation to financial reporting; and

(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any
matters the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of

management where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2025, the Audit Committee met three times, in
particular, to review and discuss the followings:

®  the auditing and financial reporting matters;

®  the appointment of external auditor;

° the establishment of internal control system; and

®  the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors

and all senior staff of the Group.
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EXRELGRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was established on |3th July 2005 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. Its written terms of reference
were updated in September 2023 to comply with the new requirement of the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors and an Executive Director. The composition and attendance

record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

FMEES

AR

FMEEeRN—_TTRAF LA T=ARE
B AP E B E E AL o ABEEHE
ERZEZ=FNAREMNTAUELE
e THEECR (MBI IERITES R
—(ITESANK - FMEZEEG CAKK
EEALSENT

Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HEESBRE percentage
Attendants HEE S BRE HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) {5 E(ZE &L /)

(Resigned on 20th December 2024) (RZT-_WF+A -+ HEE) 22 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung (Committee Chairman) T2IBeRE(ZELE/E)

(Appointed on 20th December 2024) (RZZ2ZWF+ZAZ+HEZT) 4/4 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RENRFEE 4/4 100%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung A RS A& 4/4 100%
Ms. LIU Sau Lai BHEBLL

(Appointed on 20th December 2024) (RZZE-_MF+ A +REZEE) 212 100%
Role and Function AGKBE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive
Directors and senior management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their offices or appointment. It takes into consideration on
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and

responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the
performance and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives.
The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the year ended 30th
June 2025 to review the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
and the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management of

the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration of employees (including the Directors and Senior
Management) of the Group are generally structured by reference to market
terms and individual merits, which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Group also
provides various other benefits to designated staff, including discretionary bonus,
social insurance or medical insurance, share option scheme, continuing education
and training programmes. The Group also launched key performance indicators
assessment scheme and annual bonus scheme to boost individual performance

and operational efficiency.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid

and payable by the Company for such services are as follows:
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HK$’000
FER
Audit services for the Group RAEERME  EZRE 2,158
Non-audit services including: FEBERRBEIE

— review of interim results e 343
— taxation services for the Group — RAEBERME 2 HIBR 328

— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —AEERFEERNHIETER
annual results announcement 24
Total mE 2,853
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ExEA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Composition

A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Committee”) was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate
Governance Committee consists of all Independent Non-executive Directors.
The composition and attendance record of the Corporate Governance

Committee are as follows:

TEEREES

AL
AATINBEEERLZEG([EEREZE
R -_TE-——F=A-+RNBERETH
RENBESEENT - PEBREEEH
ERBUIFATEFMAK - HARKRLRE
s

\//

&
}

3

Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESERE percentage
Attendants HEE SR E HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) B E R E(ZELEE)

(Resigned on 20th December 2024) (RZE_NF+ZHAZ=+HET) 1/ 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung (Committee Chairman) RWBEEE(ZEZF/E)

(Appointed on 20th December 2024) (RZZZNF+=A=+HERE) 3/3 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REFHEE 3/3 100%
Ms. LIU Sau Lai BHEBLZL

(Appointed on 20th December 2024) (RZZEZMF+-A=Z+HEZMT) 212 100%

Role and Function AGRBE
The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and TrEELCZETARERIBRIAEE P

reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held
three meetings during the year ended 30th June 2025 to review the corporate
governance policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on

corporate governance to the employees of the Group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group
has formulated and adopted a risk management process which includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, risk monitoring and reporting. At
least on an annual basis, the management of the Company identifies risks that
would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's objectives, and assesses
and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans are then established for those risks considered to be significant,

which include regular reporting to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information
to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors. In addition, the Group has established internal
control protocols and control self-assessment process on major operations.

Assessment results are submitted to the Board for ongoing monitoring purpose.

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk associated

with its businesses and operations. The system comprises the following phases:

° Identification: identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that

could affect the achievement of objectives;

° Analysis and Assessment: analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

. Risk Response and Monitoring: consider the risk exposures, ensure
effective communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks on an

ongoing basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the Group
to achieve objectives regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and

regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follows:

. Control environment: a set of standards, processes and structures that

provide the basis for carrying out internal control across the Group;

. Risk assessment: a dynamic and iterative process for identifying and
analysing risks to achieve the Group's objectives, forming a basis for

determining how risks should be managed;

° Control activities: actions established by policies and procedures to ensure
that management's directives to mitigate risks for the achievement of

objectives are carried out;

° Information and communication: internal and external communications
to provide the Group with the information needed to carry out the daily

controls: and

i Monitoring: ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain whether each

component of the internal control system is present and functioning.

For the purpose of enhancing the risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the Board and
the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring and in performing the internal
audit functions for the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation
of internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation

actions are taken.

The Board has reviewed and considered the Group's risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate during the year. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Group are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards of
openness, probity and accountability. The Company has formulated the Whistle
Blowing Policy in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. It
was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company, with the
authority and responsibility being delegated to the Audit Committee. Details
of the Whistle Blowing Policy of the Company are disclosed on the Company's

website https://www.nhh.com.hk.

External parties may raise concerns about the relevant matter against the

Company by using below channel:

Email: auditcommittee@nhh.com.hk

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group is committed to achieving the highest standards of business conduct
and has zero tolerance for corruption and related malpractice. The Company
has formulated the Anti-Corruption Policy and it was approved and adopted by
the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the requirements of
the Stock Exchange. Details of the Anti-Corruption Policy of the Company are

disclosed on the Company's website https://www.nhh.com.hk.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Ka Ho (“Mr. Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses
the necessary qualifications and experiences, and is capable of performing
the functions of a company secretary. Mr. Chan is the secretary of the Board
and various Board committees including Audit Committee, Remuneration

Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2025, Mr. Chan has complied with Rule 3.29 of

the Listing Rules by taking no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.
Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders
may be put to the Board through the following channels to the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary"):

by mail to the Company’s head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Centre, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number +852 2693 1663;
3. by fax at fax number +852 2694 0877; or
4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk.

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders.
Announcements are posted on the Company's website https://www.nhh.com.
hk. Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the website also contains

additional information on the Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure
a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and

goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by
poll in all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to
shareholders together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The
Company has taken steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about
voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents
of the Company. The Board attends the Annual General Meetings to answer
shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on the website of the Stock

Exchange and are posted on the Company's website shortly after the meetings.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
at the Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Centre, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) must include the personal information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (i) must be
signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/documents to
verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the Candidate indicating his/
her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a Director without adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to
submit and lodge the Notice as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business

days prior to the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March
2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply

with the code provision F.I of the CG Code.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) was adopted by the

Board and became effective on Ist January 2019.

The Dividend Policy is to ensure that the Board maintains an appropriate
procedure on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the
Company. The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the Company's
shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

The declaration and recommendation of dividends is subject to the decision of
the Board after considering the Company's ability to pay dividends, which will
depend upon, among other things:

®  the Group's financial results;

®  the Group's cashflow, liquidity and capital requirements;

®  the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;
®  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;
® the Group's shareholders’ interests;

® the Group's current and future business operations, conditions, cycle and

strategies;
° the general market conditions;
®  the shareholders’ and the investors' expectation and industry’'s norm;

. any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the

Group's lenders;
° statutory and regulatory restrictions;
° past dividend records; and

. any other factors the Board may deem relevant.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (Continued)

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a dividend and the form
to pay, subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the
Bye-laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company must
be approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company at
an annual general meeting and must not exceed the amount recommended by
the Board. The Board may also consider declaring special dividends from time to
time, in addition to the interim and/or final dividends. There is no assurance that

dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and its effectiveness
from time to time. Any revisions to the Dividend Policy shall be considered and

approved by the Board.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group"), which are set out on pages 62 to

|86, comprise:

®  the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2025;

®  the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

® the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

®  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

®  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

® the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material

accounting policy information and other explanatory information.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30th June 2025, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") as issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to provision for inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FEEETEE @)

Key Audit Matter

HEETEE

Provision for inventories

Refer to Notes 4(c) and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net value, being estimated
selling price less estimated selling costs. As at 30th June 2025, the Group's
balance of net inventories was HK$252,632,000.

The estimation of provision for inventories involves significant management
judgement, which is determined with reference to the price per latest sales
transaction, ageing analysis, market condition and the estimated net realisable

value for obsolete and/or slow-moving inventories.

We focused on the evaluation of management's assessment on the provision
for inventories because this assessment is subject to estimation uncertainty.
The inherent risk in relation to the assessment relates to the subjectivity of
significant assumption used, significant judgements involved in selecting data
and the carrying values of these inventories are financially significant to the

Group.

FRAE
BRI B TR A 4(c) K 22

TFE TR AL A R FEMRE R 2 RIE
HYER - AEBRFETDRBEHEEMS
FIBREETHEZHMEE - RZE=-h
FRA=ZTH EEENTFEFEAR
252,632,000 7T ©

EREEERESTTBISER  FE
BRES AT FIIBIS S 7 MR A
BRFESREUE R REHELEA
18 -

BMEITEEES FERBEMIEL 2T
> AREEE N EE LG
& - BTS2 BB R EAER AA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
R TS

FEEETEE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EANETNTEEBRESEE

Provision for inventories (Continued)

In assessing the reasonableness of management's provision for inventories, we

performed the following procedures:

We obtained an understanding on management's internal control and
assessment process of estimating the provision allowance for inventories,
including how management gathered source of inventory data for the
assessment. We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other

inherent risk factors;

We assessed the reasonableness of the methodology and key
assumptions applied by inquiring management and evaluating
management’s projection of subsequent utilisation patterns based on

historical sales data;

We tested inventories movements to validate the accuracy of the
inventories ageing report, which was the key report used by management

to determine the provision for slow-moving inventories;

In relation to management's assessment of inventories’ net realisable
values, we compared the carrying amount of inventories to actual selling

prices less cost of sales subsequent to year end on sample basis.

Based upon the above procedures performed, we considered that the
assumptions adopted and judgement applied by management were supported

by available evidence.

FRA G (E)

MR EEBHFERENMGEEREN
BAMITHEFEHE
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TE M EE 2 1R E K [E A [ B A
FKFUFEERERFAHESF
[BLBg

e HMBELANMERE UREBESL
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R3S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ REITHRLDTE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R3S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business units
within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our

audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ REITHRLDTE

REMMBT RSB HRE
RIENET @)

FEEE R R RENR Y
R R & A A R B A 2
It -

HEERABEKLLESTERDOR
EUHFLEW o RIBEPTERNER
BE HMERLAAFERFENE
MEBBERTEEMN WA
REYY BESEENRELERS
EEBEARE MRBEMRBATE
BERTHEEN - RIA 0B EEZBED
BEFRBERAEBIZSEAVHR
RPWEBRE REBBOKE
T AIRMEEERIFERER
R B REER XA HR S
RIEFAEVSESRE - A R
KEEHKIBFEAAEEN EEET

ok 4ot 435 Jom A
BEIFELE o

AESAEMBHREANERINET
A EENMAT BEEE UK
FAMBHRRELTAERMRMEER
ZHFEIR e

AHEIMBMITREER - LERBER
EEEANERAXEBELIBER
HIFE R AE S B AR - AEER
EMBBRREKEABREHRE
®eHMEE EXEEE EE
MEBZREEBRTMRITHET T
1 RPARBABRARERET -

TEREN  REEXZEGERT

AHEIMEATHE - KRTH  EXETE

- BRERMIEE BB H AR E S

B E R B KERPE ©



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Ng Hiu Tung (practising certificate number: PO5150).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29th September 2025
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Consolidated Income Statement

FelER

For the year ended 30th June 2025
2 _EAFANASTHIEFE

2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
3 FiBT Fis
Revenue from contracts with customers BEPE 2 WES 5 1,348,511 1,276,350
Cost of sales i & R AR 8 (1,130,020) (1,077,087)
Gross profit EF 218,491 199,263
Other income H AUk A 6,397 6,651
Other (losses)/gains, net Hth (E518), Wz — F 58 7 (1,499) 2,634
Distribution costs KA (84,040) (81,723)
Reversal of loss allowance on trade receivables, net B 5 UK ET BB —F58 3. 1,546 500
Administrative expenses TR 8 (110,753) (109,227)
Operating profit 785 A 30,142 18,098
Finance income B #s U as 1,016 865
Finance costs MEER (21,688) (23,601)
Finance costs, net M%ER—FE 9 (20,672) (22,736)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BB RTE A (B HE) 9,470 (4,638)
Income tax expense WA 10 (8,121) (12,195)
Profit/(loss) for the year RERF,(E8) 1,349 (16,833)
Attributable to: AT AT R -
Equity holders of the Company NI 339 (18,041)
Non-controlling interests eI 1,010 1,208
1,349 (16,833)
Earnings/(loss) per share for REERRIRFIEN
profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders wFL(ER) 2
of the Company during the year BREF,(E8)
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AR ILED)
— Basic and diluted —BERREE 12 0.09 (4.89)

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income
mEaftiER

For the year ended 30th June 2025
BE_F_nfF A=THIFE

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT
Profit/(loss) for the year REHHN, (EEE) 1,349 (16,833)
Other comprehensive income: Hith 2 EUE -
[tem that will not be reclassified subsequently RETBSHREFHEE
to income statement: Wk oBEE -
Fair value gain of financial asset at fair value BRAAEBERF AHLM
though other comprehensive income PHEHWENMBEES
(“FVOCI NABEKE = 340
Other comprehensive income for the year REHMEE KR — 340
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year REZEME(EE) 1,349 (16,493)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2HEE(E8) B5E
attributable to: BB
— Equity holders of the Company —RAEIRE 339 (17,796)
— Non-controlling interests — IR 1,010 1,303
1,349 (16,493)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
\ FEBEAGX

As at 30th June 2025

R-E-_AFNA=+H

2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FTHET FAET
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREE 15 94,944 93,059
Right-of-use assets CREEE 16 23,351 21,850
Investment properties WEME 17 154,291 158,233
Intangible assets BmILEE 18 2,100 —
Financial asset at fair value through BAMREBEFTAEM
other comprehensive income THRGEHNHIEEE 19 2,684 2,684
Financial asset at fair value through BAREETA
profit and loss EHERNIMBEAE 20 6,176 5959
Deferred income tax assets BRI S E 32 8,442 9,805
Deposits and prepayments for property, ME - BB RREBEEE
plant and equipment and renovation costs BRRERZS 2,131 5,245
294,119 296,835
Current assets REBEE
Inventories A 22 252,632 300,277
Trade and bills receivables EE Y C VYL ES 23 262,461 243,833
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits H A fEBGR - TR 3K
kZEE 24 28,421 31,754
Income tax recoverable AT e B 18 600 3294
Restricted bank deposits SRR B RITIE R 26 37,185 36,657
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkFeEHE 26 193,161 104,233
774,460 720,048
Total assets naE 1,068,579 1,016,883
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable to DRARREGERA R B
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital [N 29 36,920 36,920
Share premium A& A5 (B 29 62,466 62,466
Other reserves Hith i 30 4,792 7,007
Retained earnings RE & A 30 391,073 390,734
495,251 497,127
Non-controlling interests IR 32,779 22,170
Total equity ERBH 528,030 519,297

64  NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED » BE{FERATE



Consolidated Balance Sheet

GEBEEAER
As at 30th June 2025
R-FE-_AFNA=+H

2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
s FAT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FREBER
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFIAAE 32 3,833 4928
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 4,363 1,344
8,196 6,272
Current liabilities pEI=RE
Trade and bills payables Z I RENRRENRER 27 82,640 53,478
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HEN® - 2 ET2
NIERRE R 28 36,252 39,711
Lease liabilities HERE 16 4,396 5,075
Borrowings EE 31 400,045 385,873
Derivative financial instruments TTEEMIA 25 850 736
Income tax payable FE T8 8,170 6,441
532,853 491,314
Total liabilities waE 540,549 497,586
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,068,579 1,016,883
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the LuliRE B E A E 7 E B I T — OF 62

accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to |86 were approved by the

Board of Directors on 29th September 2025 and were signed on its behalf.

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
B FRELE

Director Director

BF BF

Ae °©

FOLEIBEMNPUBRMEREAETTN
E-RFAA-TABNK TRERESE
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= RR
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Other comprehensive income

Fair value loss of financial asset at FVOCI

7
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FAESgER
For the year ended 30th June 2025
BE—FE_RFNA=FHIFE

A"E-=Ef-H
i
KE(BR)/ 5
Rt2EhE
BALBES AL 2ENE
HETRAE M ERER

405,201

(18041

B1%

1,208

Total
o
HK$'000
TR

536,504

(14633

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Transactions with owners

Transactions with non-controlling interests

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

EYE/(FR)

EfEELRS
SERRERIRS
(Ht38)

EERE UL

Total transactions with owners

BiRELRA4E

i1 o

390734

519297

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Autributable to the Company's equity holders

ARRREEB

Other reserves

Sttt

Financial

assets at

fair value
through

other
comprehensive
income reserve
BAR
BEA
Afe2E

W kEHE
kx BxEE LU EfiRf EEGE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thn Thn TEn Thn

Share Share Capital -~ Revaluation

capital pIENT reserve reserve

RERDEER

For the year ended 30th June 2025
BE_E_aF A HA=1THIFE

Exchange
fluctuation Non-
reserve Retained

EX earnings

controlling
interests Total
RaaE REEN  FENER ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Thn Tin Thn

At It July 2024 RZFZmELA-A 36920 62466 (3,119 9,640 1,802 (1,316) 390,734 0170 519,97
Comprehensive income 2EhE
Profit for the year R - - - = = = 39 1010 1,349
Other comprehensive income Aft2ERE
Fair value los of financil asset t VO~ BAABESF ARMAENE
MEHEE MAERER - - - - - - - - -

Total comprehensive income 2EkE - - - - - - 339 1010 1349
Transactions with owners BFEEZRE
Capital njection from non-controling FARRR 1A

shareolders (Note 3) (H3k38) - - - - - - - 9,821 9821
Transactions with non-controllng interests  E3E MR ¢ X5

(Note 38) (K3t 38) = = 2219) = = = = 2015 =
Dividends paid to non-controling interests SR FERTHRE - - - - - - - (2437) (2.431)
Total transactions with owners RFEEI R R - - Q215 - - - - 9,599 7384
At 30th June 2025 WIZZRERAZTH 36920 62,466 (5334 9,640 1,802 (1.316) 391,073 nm 528,030

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in ARG e o B B 3R B BRI P BT 5 — OF RO

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

i
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

T\ GELaRER
For the year ended 30th June 2025
A2 —E_aFNA=THILFE

2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B £ FTHET THET
Cash flows from operating activities REXB2R/ER
Cash generated from/(used in) operations e EEY ()
ZRE 33(a) 114,067 (29,388)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) BRE(BH)BEEMEH 3,657 (5,885)
Chinese Mainland income tax paid B8R B R PSR (6,941) (10,375)
Interest received 2B 484 290
Net cash generated from/(used in) EERELY, (FR)Z
operating activities FHEE 111,267 (45,358)
Cash flows from investing activities REEBZREN
Purchase of financial asset at fair value BERANBESAER
through profit and loss BB EE — (7,357)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWX  BEIRE (17,580) (9,050)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - BERE#E
plant and equipment FriS 3k 33(b) 569 913
Prepayments for property, ME - BB RREENR
plant and equipment 3,114 (2,221)
Addition of restricted bank deposits R 6 RIT I FRIE N (528) —
Net cash used in investing activities REXBRERZFH® (14,425) (17,715)

68  NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED + HE{FERATE



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GeBERER

For the year ended 30th June 2025
BE—FE—AFNA=THIFE

2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B £ FTHET THET
Cash flows from financing activities MEEBZRENR
Proceeds from loans FIBE R 390,073 [,116,683
Repayment of loans BEER (319,542) (1,079,395)
Net (decrease)/increase in trust receipt loans {5 sEWIE B FF CR4), 180 (56,359) 9,663
Capital injection from non-controlling interests ~ FEIEHll#Ez 2 ¥ & 7,488 —
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests XA T ISR 2 RE (2,437) (714)
Interest paid ERFE (21,688) (23,601)
Repayment of principal elements of BREHEEAEBERSES
lease liabilities (5,449) (5,967)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEXBA(ER)/
financing activities EAZFRE (7,914) 16,669
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekBeEB2EN,/ L)
cash equivalents 88,928 (46,404)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FUzREkREEHE
the year 26 104,233 150,637
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZIRESRIAESEH 26 193,161 104,233

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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es to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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NGAI

GENERAL INFORMATION
Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins

and engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM1 |, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
29th September 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(i)  Compliance with HKFRS Accounting Standards and
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS") Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622.

(i)  Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities (including financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL") and derivative financial instruments)

and investment property which are measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPA RATION (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Historical cost convention (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant

to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretation for the first time for the annual

perioding beginning on Ist July 2024:

Hong Kong Accounting Standard
("HKAS") | (Amendment)
BB ERE | SRUERTAR)

2 R
(ii)

(iii)

HEBESBERRBXIFRD

RS B I ER AR AT

RIEE )

F LRk (M)

RREGABEMBRSELN
HRBEEEERETEAS
s o SIRIE IRAR FE R A
EE e HEEEL L - %
REEREHERERY - %
BRREHTHAHMBERED
EEBEEMHERME4RE -

K 5% [B] T BR A 19 F7 2E R LA R
AEIEETER)
AEBEERE-_ZT-_WFE+A
— B B 4 S BA ) B OR A IA
ETERI R EREERT

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

HKAS | (Amendment)
FRGERIE | (BRI A)

HKFRS 16 (Amendment)
EBBIEREERE 6% (BTA)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2022) (Amendment)
BEREESH(ZT-—F)(EFTAX)

HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
FEGHERNE 7R NBEMB RS
R 75k (IBRTA)

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

MAERNGTZIERBEE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

EREMHCHERRE

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
MBRERZ 2 - ERAE B REREERGRZ
EMERZ N

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HIER A 2 5F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FA I ERRMEE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation did not have any impact on the amounts

recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly

affect the current or future periods.

(iv)
adopted

The following new standards and amendments to standards have

been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning on

I'st July 2024 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 21 and HKFRS | (Amendment)

FEGHERIE 2 KR EBUB
WELERE | 5 (ERTA)

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

BEMEHMEEAE K REBNE

FRERNE 75 (BRI A)

HKFRS I, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7

BB MEERE 155 - BT - FoW -
LI0EREBETEAE 7R

HKFRS 18
BREUBHMEERE 185
HKFRS 19

BRI HREERE 19557

Hong Kong - Interpretation 5
(2022) (Amendment)
BERBESTR(ZT - —F)(IBFTAX)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BEMBHREENE 0K REER
FHAERIZE 28 5% (1E3T )

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ REITHERDF

New and amended standards and interpretations not yet

2 wEEE#E)

(iii) 3 5% [B BT BR A 19 3T & RY WA K&
AENEETER (&)
R _E SRS o 2R R
A B0 BT 4 70 38 1 B e R A
TR ETFAZE
SHERMRARARAFHELERXR
TE -

(iv) 18 K BEFR AN H9 5T X R A A5

ZTER

Lack of Exchangeability
BRSO

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments @
SRMITEDHEKFE®

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards —
Volume 1 @

BB REER

i3

SHERFERE-FEI15O

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements ©

g HmR 2 25 MO

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures )

TEAERHIFAEEZWBRAR - HEO

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause ©

WBHRENEY —ERALBRESREKEERRZ
FEHERz2HEO
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture @

REEFREBENRHAELE HNEELEITE®

ATREAMELIFNEERE
“E-NFELtA-HENMK
FREEREFER R Y
fEF] - AEEIWEEFIRA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B I ER AR AT

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 wEEEmE
(iv) New and amended standards and interpretations not yet (iv) [ 75 B BRA HY 3T 5T A R AEME

adopted (Continued) ETER| (#)

O Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2025 M BT _hF—H—HEH
FHRBARE AR

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2026 @ BT F—A—HEHD
FIRARAERK

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2027 @ BT+ —-A—-HEHD
FHREBAR AR

@ To be determined @ MRMEE

The Group has completed an assessment of the impact of the new
amendments and interpretations to existing standards will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.

HKFRS 18 "Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements”

HKFRS 18, which sets out requirements on presentation and
disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS | “Presentation
of Financial Statements”. This new HKFRS Accounting Standard,
while carrying forward many of the requirements in HKAS 1,
introduces new requirements to present specified categories
and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide
disclosures on management-defined performance measures in
the notes to the financial statements and improve aggregation
and disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the financial
statements. In addition, some paragraphs in HKAS | have been
moved to HKAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors” and HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”. Minor amendments to HKAS 7 “Statement of Cash

Flows"” and HKAS 33 “Earnings per Share" are also made.

AREEE TR FNER M
BREURAEANTEETH
o EAFEANREETEY
BHMBHRRERERTE

BB 5 EERE 185 FT
BXRA)ZE R IE ]
BEMHHREEF 18R
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el BBV B mEEA G
AlFE R T B GHERE | 3R
MFFZ ZRMFE - 5SIATHE
BaEXRP2NEEEMMESE
NETRESR W HREK M
AP REEEEERMNERE
13 WHCEHRT REEMA
AR - BIN  BERRE
AE IRADBECBERE
SR ERIE RIS BEK - &
AHERTE S RER I REFBM
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RIS ERRMIRE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(iv) New and amended standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements”
(Continued)

HKFRS 18, and the related amendments to other standards, will
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of the new
standard is expected to affect the presentation of the consolidated
income statement and disclosures in the future consolidated financial

statements.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group'’s
overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures
is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in order to manage those risks. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative

purposes.

- RETHERLF

2 wEEE#E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Chinese
Mainland with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar
("HK$"), Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollar (“USD"). Foreign
exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency

exposures, primarily with respect to USD and RMB.

Management has a policy to require group companies to
manage their foreign exchange risk against functional currency.
[t mainly includes managing the exposures arise from sales and
purchases made by the relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group also
manages its foreign exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group's net foreign exchange exposures and
has entered into certain foreign exchange contracts to manage
foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2025, the Group had
certain outstanding forward foreign currency contracts to
purchase USD (2024: purchase USD), details of which have
been disclosed in Note 25. Certain of the Group's receivables,
restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, trade
and bills payables and borrowings were also denominated in
foreign currencies, details of which have been disclosed in
Notes 23, 26, 27 and 31. Since the HK$ is pegged to USD,
management are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk

exposure arising from USD is relatively insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2025, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by
5% against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have been HK$1,437,000
higher/lower (2024: loss for the year HK$ 1,473,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of foreign currency-denominated non-derivative

financial assets and liabilities.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets except for
the cash at bank. The Group's exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings carry
at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the Group to

fair value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether borrowings bearing fixed
or floating rates should be drawn from time to time with

reference to the trend of changes in interest rates.

&
\ EEEIFHmRGE
3.1
(@)
(b)
76

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

(©

As at 30th June 2025, if the interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year will be HK$354,000 lower/higher
(2024: loss for the year HK$278,000 higher/lower), mainly as a

result of higher/lower interest expense on borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to
its plastic materials which is dependent on the oil price. The
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order

to determine its pricing strategies.

The Group also exposed to price risk mainly arising from
investments held by the Group and classified on the
consolidated balance sheet as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Management considers that

their price risk are insignificant.
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FA I ERRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers such
as trade receivables and other counterparties. The carrying
amounts of these balances in the consolidated balance sheet
represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in

relation to its financial assets.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to

the expected credit loss model:

— Trade receivables: and

- Other financial assets at amortised cost.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and the restricted
bank deposits are deposited in major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland, which
management believes are of high credit quality. The Group has
a policy to limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial
institution and management does not expect any losses arising

from non-performance by these counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B I ER AR AT

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and

shared credit risk characteristics.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Impairment losses
on trade receivables are presented as reversal of loss
allowance on trade receivables - net in consolidated
income statement. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same line

item.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of customers and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. With
the increased risk from the volatility of economic climate
in Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong, the Group has
maintained a defined credit policy with tightened risk
profile and applied prudent policies to manage its credit
risk with its trade receivables that includes an ageing
analysis of trade receivables is prepared on a regular
basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk

associated with receivables.
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v
Q AR B A5 SRR b aE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UREREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HEEEEEE)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (d) 1EEmEEE
(1) Trade receivables (Continued) () BIZERZ(E)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 30th June 2025 EmEELE B
and 30th June 2024 was determined as follows for trade E-RFRNA=T
receivables by due date: ARZZFZMEXR
A=THE®MESE
WHEEREET
U

Gross  Average credit

carrying loss rate Loss
amount TIHEE allowance
ARE#E BEE ERRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FTET
As at 30th June 2025 R-ZBZHEF
AA=+H
Current ERC] 136,321 0.01% 26
Within 30 days 30 AR 37,795 0.01% 6
31 to 60 days 31-60H 19,073 0.02% 5
61 to 90 days 61-90H 6,265 0.05% 4
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 804 0.17% 2
Over 180 days 8@ 180 H 683 100% 683
200,941 726
Gross  Average credit
carrying loss rate Loss
amount EHEE allowance
FRmAaE BEE EE R
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt
As at 30th June 2024 R-Z-OF
AA=+H
Current BA 135,295 0.3% 154
Within 30 days 308K 40,692 0.7% 78
31 to 60 days 31-60 H 13,880 3.5% 89
61 to 90 days 61-90 H 4,229 40.6% 66
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 9,117 73.5% 106
Over 180 days @i 180 A 3,695 100.0% 3,695
206,908 4,188

80  NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED + HE{FERATE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at
30th June 2025 and 2024 reconcile to the opening loss

allowances as follows:

FE B HRRMEE

B 7S B B B X ()
R E ()
(d) 1EEmEEE)

() EBZERZK(E)

R-E-—FER=
TopEXNA=T
BME S ERRF
RE 1B 1)
EEEENE R
T

Loss allowance for

trade receivables

BEZRUAEERE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Opening loss allowance as at |st July RtEA—B/®
FHEEEE (4,188) (4,689)
Reversal of loss allowance 2 S REBGRSE
on trade receivables, net B[O —F%58 1,546 500
Receivable written off BiBrER 1,916 I
Closing loss allowance as at 30th June RS HA=+THH
FREBERB (726) (4,188)
g 5 RO E B

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
reversal of loss allowance on trade receivables - net in
consolidated income statement. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against

the same line item.

B2 SEE R
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

(e

Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and
cash equivalent, bills and other receivables. Management
considered that these have a low credit risk and did
not make any provision for these other financial assets
at amortised cost based on the historical settlement
pattern of these other financial assets and the forward-

looking recoverability analysis of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2025, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$355,619,000 (2024: HK$359,993,000).
Credit risk in connection with such guarantees is considered

to be minimal.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping

committed credit lines available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for
additions of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment,
settlement of borrowings, payment for trade and other
payables, and payment for operating expenses. The Group
mainly finances its working capital requirements through a

combination of internal resources and borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash balances and adequate credit facilities to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and long-term.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of
the Group. The Group also maintains a prudent level of
liquid assets and committed banking facilities to ensure the
availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected
and material cash requirements in the ordinary course of
business. As at 30th June 2025, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$662,792,000
(2024: HK$622,903,000) of which HK$355,619,000 (2024:
HK$359,993,000) was being utilised by the Group.
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FA I ERRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The tables below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flow, including interest payments computed using contractual
rates, based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the
maturity date of borrowings with a repayable on demand
clause is based on agreed schedule repayment set out in the
loan agreements, disregarding the repayment on demand
clauses. Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. As at 30th June 2025, total borrowing with
repayment and demand clauses is HK$400,045,000 (2024:
HK$385,873,000).

- RETHERLF

3

R EREE)
B R B E (4F)

3.1

(e

B EZ R (&
TEREHIRBEREE R
EAHNFEBHAMT
72N & B 48 B8 2 B 48 R
W BaERFEEZ
TESBMIEABEZS
e TREBNSHEA
ERAEEFTEZEND
S F HHFTAOIERERR
SRE - REHA DN
ME - FIBEE#EBIREKX
BEREX2EBHEHRR
FERERBELRRE
ZEFFEHER - ZE
B AR EE 2 B AROR
EEWTRAMBBERT
G 1T 5% 8 B G R W)
ANEBERBIFE -
EEHEHEECERE
B EEREFRG®
HEtE AR wEE
c R ZE-_HENA
TH FESHEBELRE
KEFBEX Z2ERN®
A2 400,045,00078 7T ( =
£ — [ 4 : 385,873,000
HBIL) o

[ P



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE B ERRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 3 BHMEKEKREERE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HBEEEZEE)
(e)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) WEEZmEE(E)

Repayable Within Between | Between 2

on demand | year  and2years  and 5 years Total

REREE £ -EWFA WMELEFR aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

At 30th June 2025 RZZE-RF A=tH

Trade and bills payables B HERN K RENZE — 82,640 - - 82,640
Other payables Hit AR RERER

and accruals — 24,633 — — 24,633

Lease liabilities REARE — 4,667 128 4,402 9,197

Borrowings & 400,045 = = = 400,045

Total Fk 400,045 111,940 128 4,402 516,515

Repayable Within Between | Between 2
on demand | year  and 2 years and 5 years Total
BRERER —FA —EWFA MELFA fam

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TRT TR THBT TR TR

At 30th June 2024 RZZE-mN&E A=+H

Trade and bills payables B ZERNF L ERN R & — 53,478 — — 53478
Other payables HtENRRERER

and accruals — 27966 — — 27966
Lease liabilities HEEE — 5282 1378 — 6,660
Borrowings e 385,873 — — — 385,873
Total Rk 385,873 86,726 1378 — 473977

ANNUAL REPORT FE#H% 24/25 85

‘,\ s



)

))

)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Q AR B A5 SRR b aE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEREAZEE)
(e)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) mBEZEEE)
The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial TRETASE®ENERE
liabilities that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant EELENTTESRE
maturity groupings based on the remaining period from & HREBNIHAE
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. Bl BEBEHEEBEE
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual Az &R 3 EH & F ek
undiscounted cash flows, based on exchange rates prevailing at HMEETHN ERA
the balance sheet date. BENSHEARKUR

MERRER  LRIE
REERBERAERD
[EXRBZE o

Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—fR —ZWERN WELER g
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTERT THERT FTHET
At 30th June 2025 RZZE-_RA&X A=1H
Currency forward BREHAN
contract
— Outflow — 4N 96,863 30,996 = 127,859
— Inflow —RA (96,875) (31,000) = (127,875)
Total FGEt] (12) (4) — (16)
At 30th June 2024 RZZEZMERA=+A
Currency forward BHRIEH
contract
— Outflow — 4N 73611 112,353 — 185,964
— Inflow — A (73,625) (112,375) — (186,000)
Total Gk (14) 22) — (36)

86 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED - $HREITHRAQF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payments to shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new

borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance

sheet, plus net debt.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 30th
June 2025 and 2024:

FE B HRRMEE

3 BIRKERERE)
32 EBEAXEBEZE
AEENELEEHE 2%
A AL B LE AR
HIZH BB AR Mg
NIZEEFZE  FRGRBREN
BAEBLUREE SR

AEBEEEEARRE  TRE
RERBENEFLRE - B
THBRABRELRERE A%
B R a2 B T T RR AR
B8 BITHRIESHN

AEENABELXEREE
AR ot e AR PRAR 5 H BRR A
BERGHE - BBFEREE
ERERERASFR - HE
ARl (MEaEEARE
RGBT FEE

RZE_REFR-ZZTZMEAN
A=1+RB AKEZAEKE

LUl
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Total borrowings (Note 31) wEE (M3 400,045 385,873
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) & : & RN E 5 (F17E26) (193,161) (104,233)
Net debt B 5 206,884 281,640
Total equity HarEm 528,030 519,297
Total capital 1B R A 734914 800,937
Gearing ratio BERBELE 28% 35%
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FA I ERRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the
balance sheet at fair value are required to disclose the fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1)

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,

as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivable and
deposits and other receivables, and the Group's current financial
liabilities including borrowings, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ REITHERDF

3

R EREE)

3.3

AR BELH

BT B W
% EMeBmIAES
ENRABETERRE
RBESERERE -

BI%E7
EafE
TFA

e HREZEHSBEBEETR
TENREBOCRERHE)
(B I12)

e BTFIEBMEBRENRE
Sh- ZEBEEMBEMNA
BEmEMB A AR
BEEEIBI(ER ) K
E(AREER)(E2/E)

s EBEEMARIIFKER
BEmEEENE AR
FABRBA)(E3E)

AEERDEMEE CREE
BREASLRSETH HHE
WHREERE  me REA
FEUK - AR A& B 7 8/ 75
BEREREE BZERNZK
ENRIE - AR R EER
2/ AREREARRHMmE
HARBERS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the

current bid price. These instruments are included in level |.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is

included in level 2.

If one or more of the inputs is not based on observable market data,

the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no transfers of financial assets between level | and level

2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

RS B I ER AR AT

3 BIREREREE)

3.3

RAEEGE ()

EERMZEENERMIA Y
ARABEREBEEEBNTS R
B3R o & W 7] BB E 51
REHFZXGH XH5H &
e ERNATLT EERBEL
EEREES  MZERER
FEATFRGEEHETHER
MERANISR 6 - ZhHH
REAER - XEBFANHTB
BENMEMERERER
B hELMTEATAEIE -

YN ERTSEENSRT
A(HI R 5TES R T
BN EBERBMEET X
EE - HERTEENAATE
EWSHE(NE)  BEIK
FEERMFEMAT - WETHE—
TR TANRAEEMBHAN
BEXRGARAEBREHSE - ]
ZEBTAINAE2E -

WM—EKZEEARE AL IR
BRBEMSHE  MZe®
TARMNAEIE -

FIEHEIBAABEERD
MBI BEGEEENE N
B o
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

>

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3 BERERE#E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AAREEET(E)
As at 30th June 2025, the Group's financial asset at FVOCI is RZEZRFEASA=+H &
categorised as level 3 financial instruments. Disclosures relating SEZBARBEAAEME
to investment properties that are measured at fair value are set HRENHBEEES 5 RIE
out in Note 7. As at 30th June 2025, the fair value of financial FIESMIAE - BEAULR
instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined BEFENREMEE VI
by using valuation techniques. Fair value of unlisted investment I7REE - RZZE_RF~A
was determined by the Directors to be close to the net assets =t+B - REEERMHER
value of such company based on its unaudited financial statements MemIANRABENAM
for the year. The keyman insurance contract is determined based BERMETE - FLTREZR
on the cash surrender value in accordance with the keyman NEBEEHREEREBEZARZE
insurance contract. Directors estimate the fair value based on the EREERVBRER 2 EEF
cash surrender value projection in the keyman insurance contract. Bt - ETZABRBENE
Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair RIEEZEABRBRELHMIZ
value estimate. RRARESEETE - EFREFE
EABRBEVNZERERE
mMEMFTAAE - BFEEZER
BRNEHKEATEAEER
C!
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for TRERBRE_Z_HFA
the year ended 30th June 2025, =+ Eti&éﬁ&inﬂlﬁ
BB E o
Financial
asset at
FVOCI
BAREE
T AR At
2EKEN
MBEE
HK$’000
FTHET
Opening balance HA W AE A 2,684
Gain/(loss) recognised in EEERRN KR (EE)
profit and loss —
Closing balance BRI AE A 2,684

- RETHERLF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for
the year ended 30th June 2024.

RS B I ER AR AT

B 7S B B B X ()

3.3 AAEEGEH(E)
UTAREZE_-_Z-MEXA
—t+HLEFEARNEIESR T
AEMEHHE -

Financial
asset at
FVOCI
BRRAREE
ST AEAh
2 ER R
MISEE
HK$'000
TAET

Opening balance HRN &5 R
Gains recognised in T E Ath 2 T W o

other comprehensive loss R

2,344

340

Closing balance HARR AE £

2,684

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

As at 30th June 2025 and 2024, there were no financial assets or
financial liabilities which were subject to offsetting, enforceable

master netting or similar agreements.

34 HHEHBEEENERE
RZEZRAFR =T NFX
A=+H UEEAHBEEE
AT BEEEE - AIMmTRE
B2 BEFBUBERR o
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

RIS ERRMIRE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the

related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

()

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, leasehold land and land use rights and intangible
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to

sell. These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(if) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value-in-use which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's financial position and results of operations. If there
is a significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an

impairment charge to the consolidated income statement.

RETHERDF

4

ERgsH e R A

A R B TR B TS R
ERRAMLRERERRRY A &
FEMAREH - TH AR
B {4 -

AEBEERKEL RGBT 2GR
BB REELPHERERER
R LT AEBEE =R G
R ATEHAR T EMBKF
EHEEHRBRBRZREEFELRSA

B’ o
=

(a) FHEBEERE
FMBEEBREYE BER
i ERARAEMESE L
Rt AEMELEETIR

BEERER D DRSS

af o AT El B R IR HAE R E
BEEFUZEESOIMMHER
ZEREMBERLR - ILER
BRGERERHERES

AEBREEREFEAED
HE - FRIRFEOBEER
AJREEEBERTEEHFZ T
R (HNEERMBERSESH
WEl &R RABERA
BERASNEFEAEEETTUER
BERE MEBBRRESRER
SEERAEET S R3i)R
LM REBHNFAAEELTE
BREBFERESRETARNZE U
AELLERITE - EEEMER
BUAFHRERERSRETRE
RFTAE RN REERE
b - AT TR ER BT AR E
FEEREATE KMy E
REBSBMR R EEKE -
WERAIRE IR RETERAEB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined
at each balance sheet date by an independent professional valuer by
reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate
on the basis of capitalisation of the passing rentals of the current
leases based on the capitalisation rates including the outgoings. This
methodology is based upon estimates of future results and a set of
assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and future
economic conditions. Details of the judgement and assumptions

have been disclosed in Note |7.

Estimate of provision for inventory

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net
realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories are
recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

RS B I ER AR AT

4 BEARETHEFTRHE®)

(b)

(c)

1HEtREYRZ A EE

EREMEZAREBEINE
—fE % E B R B FERF
HENESEA LR 2T IHR
5 EBEEBATHRBEE
WERESREBESHBRX
MERCERBERENRET °
BETDETZERERRERZ
CRPSERIEL S ENEY P
BRZBE - BRHE KER
ZFHIBMIEE 17 R ER o

1 et FE B EEERE R
AEBERBEFEERME G
MEFEENZERFE - FE
AERFERRAEEBEE
EBIBRGTHER  BH
R RERTHREBELE
BUERZ&BMIEL - 18k
EETRIRE R R P O BR M 5 4
FEITEHRGEF P RRE
EmHRERES - —BEH
LASBANER RN FEER
A BE K B B 2R B 1S 4% FE B2 2 K
B o BRI OB 2 A M B
fBat - BEEH S BERERTEM
AEERR AZERBER
et 2 IR ANER - L5
REFREREERTFEZ
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<:} AR B A5 ERaR b aE

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

BEEFEHz2WER
7 ERE #

2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET

Revenue from contracts with customers BEEELHZIWA
Sales of goods HEEm

1,348,511 1,276,350

The Group derived revenue from the sales of goods at a point in time.

Liabilities related to contract with customers

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with

AEERE-KHEMBBEREHEE

P

Hnon

=

=

PV
o

BREFEHNZEE
AEECHBATEREFRANZ
BiE:

2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT

customers:
Contract liabilities, included in other B AEMENRLIEREH
payables and accruals ZataE

6,155 7,753

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the

current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

TRETARESHEARBEEESL
BEEINKESE -

2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET

Revenue recognised that was included AFYENEEER
in the contract liabilities balance at < BRI

the beginning of the year

7,753 9,005

There are no unsatisfied nor partially unsatisfied performance obligation

that has an original expected duration of one year or more.

94  NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED + BE{FERATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined
the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM
that are used to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM
considers the business from the operations nature and the type of
products perspective, including the trading of plastic materials (“Trading”),
manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and compounded plastic
resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering plastic products
(“Engineering plastics”) and other corporate and business activities
(“Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms
and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties.
Information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of revenue and operating profit including corporate expenses,
which is in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements.

5

RS B I ER AR AT

EEEHZHWER
DEER (#)
AEEZIBEBABEEREN 6
WEEE - RRNIRBE S

BRGERRERRBER/ARRALZ
HITEF BREERREBZALALN
BRI RE AT ERRAMDA
BR -EEEEAERBULERS
EEREDR BRQEREER
HEHERERMAREZERK &
TREZBRHMZEE(ES])
EEH enRERZHERESR
([Eefl)) IREBHZHEHERE
SE(IREM]DREMEERER
mE([EAM]) -

S EEDBRE - RREEHE
- XRTRZEBECEEE
2 o 5 HE G R AT 2 B FA
MR B IRFGEAT - B AR
FERENGEHEREAHBE
RAEH

BERGERREBHEXBARLSE
BM(BREEH)NGAEFEHE
EOBHRE - RS MR
AT -
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Q AR B A5 ERaR b aE

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEF&E8z2WER
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved) DEER (&)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable
segments for the year ended 30th June 2025 is as follows:

BE_T_RFANA=THLFE
REGERKERREZIZ27

96

ERWARIT -
Segment
2 &8
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 ERE IRZEH Hit rEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET TET FERT FERT FERT
Turnover BER
~ Gross revenue —DEBIEE 911,849 361,148 134208 — 1,407,205
— Inter-segment revenue — D EREIHE (54,609) (2,969) (1,116) — (58,694)
Revenue from external HNBE P Uas
customers 857,240 358,179 133,092 — 1,348,511
Depreciation of property, mE - BB R
plant and equipment ZEIE 447 9,187 5,155 185 14,974
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEENE
assets 313 4,787 982 206 6,288
Operating profit/(loss) rERs, (BE) 2,446 25,127 12,123 (9,554) 30,142
Finance income B 854 144 18 — 1,016
Finance costs MiEER (19,193) (1,212) (1,077) (206)  (21,688)
(Loss)/profit before income tax ~ BRFL AT (E18) /5 (15,893) 24,059 11,064 (9,760) 9,470

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable
segments for the year ended 30th June 2025 is as follows: (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Other information:
Capital expenditures
(Reversal of)/provision for

impairment of inventories, net

Reversal of loss allowance
on trade receivables
Fair value gains on derivative

financial instruments

Fair value gains on financial asset & QA L EEFT AE 5B

through profit and loss

Fair value losses/(gains)
on investment properties

e BRI EE
EFEHNZHREHER
DEER @)
HE-ZT-_RAFA=1+HIEFE
RBBERLERRE 2RI
ENHWERMT ¢ (&)
Segment
25
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EGB IRBR Hfit A&H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FER FEx FER FHER FET
Hi &R
BEARRX 156 16,512 3,109 2,696 22,473
FEREEE
(Bm),#BE
— 5 (5,304) 98 (1,041) = (6,247)
B I RKFER
e (505) (988) (53) = (1,546)
TESmIA
NAEEKE (360) = = = (360)
BariBEE
N EERE = = = (217) (217)
BREMEAAEE
&8, () I (239) — 4,170 3,942

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable

segments as at 30th June 2025 is as follows:

Segment

2 &8

E/\_?_ﬂi/\ﬂ +E|:|J:E{/\/ _é_
FRERREZAZIBEDHE
BT

Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group

25 EGE IRER Hit A&£E

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

FTHERT FTERT FTET FTHET FTHET

Segment assets DEEE 408,873 385,602 132,338 141,766 1,068,579
Segment liabilities DEBE (394,327)  (78,294)  (25,059)  (42,869) (540,549)

aj\
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e B I ER R 5E

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEFEHAZWHER
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) o EE R @)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable BE-_Z-_NFA=1THILEFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2024 is as follows: REREELEARARE 225k
EORERMT
Segment
DE
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
25 E@B IRBH Ht REE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TET THET TET TAET
Turnover EEE
— Gross revenue — D EBABIHE 831542 369,295 136969 — 1,337,806
— Inter-segment revenue — D EFEEE (59,600) (1,856) — —  (61,456)
Revenue from external SNERE P UL
customers 771,942 367,439 136,969 — 1,276,350
Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment R 459 8344 5338 323 14464
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEENE
assets 313 4,440 982 206 5,941
Operating (loss)/profit (B8R, mF (16,293) 26,499 12,289 (4,397) 18,098
Finance income B i i 2 98 747 20 — 865
Finance costs B 7% % A (20,187) (1,746) (1,441) (227)  (23,601)
(Loss)/profit before income tax KB (E538 ),/ % 7 (36,382) 25,500 10,868 (4,624) (4,638)
Other information: Hi&ER -
Capital expenditures =N 650 8,616 4,137 7 13,410
(Reversal of)/provision for FERELERFEED),
impairment of inventories, Bk — ¥
net (2,096) (135) 5,692 — 3,461
Provision for/(reversal of) H 5 YGRS E
loss allowance B (BE)
on trade receivables 14 (67) (547) — (500)
Impairment for property, ME - BERRERIE
plant and equipments — — 894 — 894
Fair value gains on derivative ~ $T4& &R T &
financial instruments AAEENR (10) — — — (10)
Fair value loss on financial asset EAEERT AE H
through profit and loss By BEE
PAVIMIEESES — — — 1,398 1,398
Fair value losses/(gains) KEWMEAAEE
on investment properties &iE () 261 (1,228) — (1,840) (2,807)
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable

segments as at 30th June 2024 is as follows:

RS B I ER AR AT

%ﬁmnqzu&ﬁn&
DEER (#)
R-Z-WMFENA=Z+HRELE
FEERREZ A BYREDIHE
BT

Segment
pan:
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
25 EEE  IRBH Hth REE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TERT TET TAET
Segment assets DEEE 411,697 325612 127,458 152,116 1,016,883
Segment liabilities HEBEE (390,164) (69,071) (29,786) (8,565)  (497,586)

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external
customers from Hong Kong for year ended 30th June 2025 is
approximately HK$291,923,000 (2024: HK$341,160,000), and the total of
its revenue from external customers from other locations (mainly Chinese
Mainland) is approximately HK$1,056,588,000 (2024: HK$935,190,000).

At 30th June 2025, the total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately
HK$ 162,586,000 (2024: HK$174,869,000), and the total of these non-
current assets located in other locations (mainly Chinese Mainland) is
approximately HK$ 114,231,000 (2024: HK$103,518,000).

AEBUEEREHM -HEZZT
ZHFEXNA=ZTBLEFERERE
2N R P Y 49 A291,923,000
B oo(Z T Z M F 341,160,000
BrL) MARBEMMHE(EEAR
FEAM) 2EE PR E LR
1,056,588,0007% jo(= T = 14 4 :
935,190,000 7T ) °

RZZE-_AFA=1+8 Kot
TEARBEEBBEEEIINMINEEZ
R EE E 4 A 16258600058 7T
— T PO 174,869,000 7T )
MR EMmR(EZELFTEAH)
UL EIERBEEA A 114,231,000
oL (ZF Z g 4 : 103,518,000%8
TT) °
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& \ REMBERRMEE

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 EFAAZWER

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) o EE R @)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition Wi BB Ea B

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has transferred EmHERNEEERKEMITHI#
control over products to the customer, the customer has accepted the EREREP BEPEMED  BIE
products, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s AR ERFPEMEMCABITR
acceptance of the products, the amount of sales can be reliably measured £ HESHEREHASEFERRK
and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity. BRI ERMERBR T AR
Revenue from sales is based on the price specified in the sales contracts. R HERARBHEESHNAEE
Accumulated experience is used to estimate the likelihood and provide BetHE - RIHEREARBRLRMG
for sales return for the goods sold at the time of sale. A receivable is FEEERCEREARERKIEE
recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that REEDEE BRFIBEBRRNE
the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is nHER RERZEBRIRESR
required before the payment is due. ERE ARTRHEBEZEENRE

BIZEE B A o

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HlA

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT TET

Rental income WA 6,397 6,641

Sundry income Hiw g A — 10

6,397 6,651
Outgoings in respect of investment properties that generate rental income AEEMHSBANKEME 2B
amounted to approximately HK$ 1,295,000 (2024: HK$ |,778,000). B A HE41295008 (==

ZPO4E ¢ 1,778,000 7T) °
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OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M IBHRRMEE

Hp (%), Wik — FH

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000

TET TET

Fair value (losses)/gains on investment

REWENRABEGER),/

properties (Note 17) Wk (FiEE 17) (3,942) 2,807
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial asset through & A7t BEFTAE HEZM
profit and loss
217 (1,398)
Fair value (losses)/gains on derivative TESMIAARBE(ER)
financial instruments
— Realised (114) 553
— Unrealised 474 (543)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BB N B2 Was o] —
Government grants (Note) BT % B (B =E) 1,506 1,595
Net exchange gains/(losses) HNEW = (E51R) 259 (380)
(1,499) 2,634
Note: iz -

During the year ended 30th June 2025, pursuant to Chinese Mainland local
government policies, the Group received government grants amounted to
RMB,385,000 (2024: RMB1,467,000), equivalent to approximately HK$1,506,000
(2024: HK$1,595,000), from Chinese Mainland local government authorities
to support the operations in certain Chinese Mainland regions with no special

conditions attached.

REBE-_ZE-_AFA=1+HLFE -
RIE A B R & BT EOR - AN E R
W& T B A 3 R 2 A& R B i
BT R U S 1,385,000 A R
(ZZ U4 1 467,000 AR ) (HEYD
1,506,000 7T (= Z Z PO 4F : 1,595,000/%
TT ) ) M A B A A 46 4 2 3R & BT 4 B
N EAELLE -
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FE M RRM T
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BMEETZHAX
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Cost of materials and trading stocks MERE S EBFEXR 1,046,956 984,384
Auditor's remuneration ZERT B &
— Audit services — BT 2,158 2,194
— Non-audit services — ERBRTS 695 628
Amortisation of intangible asset B EE#H 233 —
Depreciation of property, plant M BERRENE
and equipment (Note 15) (PfFE15) 14,974 14,464
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note |6) EREEENTE (M 16) 6,288 5,941
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of FERELEEHED),
inventories, net B iE— R (6,247) 3,461
Losses/(gains) on disposal of property, HEME - BERZEZ
plant and equipment B8 (Wa) 152 (566)
Employee benefit expenses, including BERAMXE(BEEZHE)
Directors’ emoluments (Note |3) (BfFE13) 140,476 134,934
Operating lease rentals in respect of BFZLEHERS
buildings (Note 16) (B5E 16) 6,421 7276
Repairs and maintenance expenses HERRERX 6,272 5,965
Transportation and packaging expenses BRLPERAX 27,061 26,874
Travelling and office expenses EREPAERL 8,093 7,435
Utility expenses KERX 17,181 17,205
Other expenses HitwEMH 54,100 57,842
Total cost of sales, distribution costs HEA » DA R
and administrative expenses TR LB 1,324,813 1,268,037
Representing: K& :
Cost of sales &R 1,130,020 1,077,087
Distribution costs DA 84,040 81,723
Administrative expenses T 110,753 109,227
1,324,813 1,268,037

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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AW FRRM T
9 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 MBRZENEH
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Finance income: B RS S -
— Interest income from bank deposits — IRITHE A BWA 484 865
— Net exchange gains on financing activities — BB T 2 SN YA R 532 —
oeeeeeeeeoooocccceeeeeeeeeoooococsssseeccocccocossseeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeo- RN 865
Finance costs: MBER :
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16) —HEAaBZME (M 16) (262) (328)
— Interest on borrowings —BEZFE (21,426) (23,273)
... (21688  (2360])
Finance costs, net MBER—FH (20,672) (22,736)
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NGA!

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2024:

[6.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the
Group's subsidiaries established and operate in Chinese Mainland have
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rate of 25% (2024: 25%), except that certain subsidiaries are subject to
preferential tax rates ranging from 5% to 5% (2024: 5% to 15%) and
other preferential tax treatments. Two subsidiaries in Dongguan and
Xiamen which were certified as High and New Technology Enterprises and
are entitled to a concessionary tax rate of 15% for three consecutive years
from 2024 to 2026 and 2023 to 2025 respectively. These subsidiaries
are entitled to re-apply for the preferential tax treatment when the

preferential tax period expires.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement

represents:

BIEX W
BAFSE TIREF REEHER
BHEREFE 2+ ANBR(ZE
ZHOF BT AMA)GER
o PREAMMEBEBDRERNEE
RAEBEAK Y REEZWEB A
A2 AFERBFTEARB RNZRA
PZ_tTR(ZE-_WF: ABHZ
TTRIZBEHE  BREZNTFA
AZRAZEBEBHZ TH(ZZTZMF :
BACHEZEED 2 TH)MERRE
K CE b BB R /9 R L B BB A R A
Ghoe REBEMBMNRREREMZ
MEBARERE AR FTRHRMEY
DR E T _NFE_TZRF
MZTE—=FE2-_FT_AFEE=
FEPZTRAZERRE - LB
NEIAIRNEBEEM G A EERD
ILIEEEWMB L -

Al ERZREASHRS

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Current income tax: REFHIA :
Hong Kong profits tax BAENEH 372 335
Chinese Mainland corporate income tax R E A ERETR 10,897 14,144
Over-provision in prior years LEERERE (3,562) (234)
7,707 14,245
Deferred income tax (Note 32) RAERIA (M5 32) 414 (2,050)
8,121 12,195
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The taxation on the Group's profit/(loss) before income tax differs from

the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax

rate as follows:

FE M IBHRRMEE

10 FBHIEBXXH#)

AEEFEGRBAEN,(BE) 2
MEEBEXRAEEMNEHR M X
MmatB 2 EmMBZZRMT

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT THAT

Profit/(loss) before income tax BB AR A (EHE) 9,470 (4,638)

Tax charged at a rate of 16.5% (2024: 16.5%) &R T 165%( —ZT U4 :

16.5%) 5T 8 2 Fi18 1,563 (765)

Effect of different tax rates in Chinese Mainland ~ HFEI A NEIFL R 2 22 3,212 2,004

Income not subject to tax BARD WA (3,091) (1,767)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TRI0HE 2 2 2,526 1,487
Tax losses not recognised RERZRIBEE 8,997 10,487
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses &) 3 5L A R iR T 1B B 18 (1,993) —
Withholding tax in Chinese Mainland B A b TR AR A 636 1,151

Over-provision in prior years LFEBERE (3,562) (234)

Tax reduction (Note) msEE(ME) (167) (168)
8,121 12,195

Note:

The Hong Kong Government has lowered the profits tax rate for the first
HK$2,000,000 assessable profit of one of the subsidiaries to 8.25%. Profits above
that amount will continue to be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. In addition, certain

subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland were subject a lower profit tax rate at 5% on
taxable income below RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,087,000),
and 0% on taxable income on taxable income over RMB1,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,087,000) but below RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,261,000), and thereafter at a fixed rate at 25%.

GE

EFBHRMBEH T —KRREBHM
B A 7 & 2,000,000 7% T FE 5F 7 A &9
FIEMEEDREE25% HiBHEB
2,000,000 7 7T A9 F& 5T B¢ K JE A 75 Bl 4 48

RI65% B < BLoh -

oy B A Y

B 2 ) JE SR B U & LA #B 38 1,000,000 A
R (Z{E4) 1,087,000 70) B9 3019 1% 5%
TR - B ER B U ER BA = 4 1,000,000
AR (ZE4 1,087,000 70) BB
3,000,000 A R ¥ (55 {8 493,261,000 % 7T )
B ER 15 12 10% Bt =B - it 18 M S 1D
Bl 259% &Y [E TE it R UK -
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( \ REMBERRMEE

Il DIVIDENDS Il RE
(a)  On 28th February 2024, the Directors resolved not to declare any (@ RZE-NF-A=+/\H
interim dividend for the six months ended 3 Ist December 2023. BrirzEEga L EF5

RIRBE_FT_=F1+_-A
=t—BUEXNEAEREMS

gﬁHX/%\ ©
(b)  On 27th September 2024, the Directors resolved not to declare any (b) RZZEZWMFHLA=-+THEHE
final dividend for the year ended 30th June 2024. NZESZEREL EFFAT

REBE-_FT_MNFA=1H
IFFEERERARBARE -

(c)  On 27th February 2025, the Directors resolved not to declare any (0 RZE-_RAF-_HA=++tH
interim dividend for the six months ended 3 Ist December 2024. BI2E $ eZL BFE

RIRBE—_ZT_NF+ A

=t—H delﬂ Bk ]

HILE. -
(d)  On 29th September 2025, the Directors resolved not to declare any (d) 73/\\_ E_RFENAAZTARE
final dividend for the year ended 30th June 2025. TrEZER L BEFEAT

Ef@%‘;_g_ﬂiﬁﬁ =+H
IEFEEIRERREBARS °

12 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12 SREF(FHE)
Basic HE
Basic eamings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) BREARRBF(BE) DEARRK
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average REMGF,(BE)GRUAFERNE
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. TEBER IETFIHETE -

2025 2024

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of REIRREIE R, (EE)

the Company (HK$'000) (F%&71) 339 (18,041)
Weighted average number of ordinary FAEBITERRZ

shares in issue AN 19 28 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic eamings/(loss) per share BREAREF(EE)

(HK cents per share) (FRRAE) 0.09 (4.89)
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RE SRR MR
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 12 BREF(EE)
Diluted #5
Dilutive earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 30th June 2025 RZZE_RAFRZZZT_MNFRA
and 2024 equal basic earnings/(loss) per share as there was no dilutive =+H - ARpRlmEEEE N2
potential ordinary share as at the years ended 30th June 2025 and 2024. TR A REE-ZE-_RF
MZZE_MERNA=T+THIERESF
B BRBERAN(BE)ESER
BREXRRERN,(EE)
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 13 EERAZH(ERE
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) EEHE)
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Wages, salaries and other allowances TE - Zri & HE AR, 136,027 130,569
Pension costs BARE R 4,449 4,365
140,476 134,934
There were no forfeited contributions of mandatory provident funds REBEE_ZT-_RAFAA=THLF
utilised during the year ended 30th June 2025 (2024: Nil) to reduce future E - YWEEBAERBL R HIER
contributions. BeHF(ZE_MF - &) -
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EE2AENEERSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS EEAEBZME
(a) Directors’ emoluments () EEHE
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the BE_Z-_AFA=TAHI
year ended 30th June 2025 is set out below: iEZﬁLi%ZH&H@ﬁDT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(FERANAIHMELH)
RUBEMXASERHHE
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
of Director’s
other services
in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employer's ~ BERAAF

and benefits contribution ~ AEMEAR

inkind  Discretionary to pension ES 3

£ bonuses Housing scheme  HtEZHB
Fees Rfb2E BfTEE allowance Bl [BGE] Total
Name of Director B3t he RENAE fied EERE BAEHR Ehwme g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR R R R B TR

Executive Directors yirEs

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) — sFIEERRA(£R) 2040 2419 = = 8 = 4477
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong SRR 2,040 2419 - - 18 - 4477
Mr NG Chi Ming REHEE = 2132 = = 8 = 2,150
Mr HUI Yan Kuen FAREE - 1613 - - 18 = 1,631
Mr HUI Man Wai L - 816 - - 18 = 834
MrHUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey STAELE 8 1,180 158 - 18 - 1,364
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

FE B HRRMEE

14 EE2NENEERSE

EBABZME @)
(a) EEME(E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

FRES(TERALAFANEAH)
REBBAXADERHHE
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
of Director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management of
the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employers ~ REBAAR

and benefits contribution ~ FHMBEAR

inkind  Discretionary to pension HEHRM

10 bonuses Housing scheme  EftEZHH
Fees B RfTEE allowance {£3:) [BLE] Total
Name of Director £33 iz REMNE WA RERR Bfez#tf  EROHE A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEn FEn TR TR TR T

Independent Non-Executive BUHER
Directors

Mr HO Wai Chi, Pau Pleria:d 125 = - - - - 125
Mr CHING Yu Lung EmEtt 05 = = = = = 05
Mr YU Chi Kiwong REREE 200 = = = = = 200
M LU Sau Lai BAERL 100 - - - - - 100
Total 28 4738 10,579 158 - 108 - 15,583
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Q e ISR

4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EEZAENERRSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEABZME @)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () EFHZ(E)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the HE_ZT_MFERA=+AHIE
year ended 30th June 2024 is set out below: FEBUEEZHSMT -

Total

4%
HK$'000
TR

Executive Directors BiTEE
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chaimman) st B4 () 2040 233 - - 8 - 4394
Mr HUI Kok Kiwong TEREE 2040 233% - - 8 - 4394
Mr NG Chi Ming REMEE - 2092 - - 18 - 2110
Mr HUI Yan Kuen STAEEE - 1,563 - - 8 - 1,601
Mr HUI Man Wi FXEEE - 800 - - 18 - 818
Mr HUI Yan Lung Geoffrey TARKE - 1,165 - - 18 - 1,183

110 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED « RE{THMRA T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

e M A5 R M aE

14 BEEZNZNEZRSE
EBAECEHE ®)

() EFEM=(E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(PERAARZENBAR)

RERBH A EROHE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director's

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employers ~ HERARE

and benefits contribution  FHEMBAH

inkind  Discretionary to pension HZHRE

& bonuses Housing scheme  EMEZRE
Fees Efb2E BRE allowance (=33 [BES Total
Name of Director XA e REDHE BT FERN RAEZR  EAHMHE 2%
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ThL TiEn TiEn ThL ThL T Thn

Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul Bk 250 - - - - - 250
Mr CHING Yu Lung BingERE 200 - - - - - 200
Mr YU Chi Kwong FEREAE 200 - - - - - 200
Total &g 4730 10312 - - 108 - 15,150

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul resigned as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 20th December 2024. Ms. LIU Sau
Lai was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 20th December 2024.

No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2024: Nil).
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2024: Nil).

fABELEER -T-ME+—
AZ+tHBEITARBIZESZH
e BEBLIN T _IF
TZAZTRZEEALRRFIZ
EF-

RAFERNTEEERERS
(T —mF &) o B
AFEEARNEERES N T
MEFMEMES KA EEETH
MZHEE(ZT-F : &) -
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S IEERRMEE

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any Directors
during the year (2024: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to Directors as compensation for the

termination of the appointment during the year (2024: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to or received by third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to any third parties making available the

services of them as a Director of the Company (2024: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such Directors during the year (2024: Nil).

()  Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year (2024: Nil).
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14 BEEZNZNEZRSE

EEBAEZHNE ®)
(b) EFEHRIKEF

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

RAFERALBRESREMHR
BARBH(ZF—mF : &) -

EEARIEREF
RAFEATERRFLRILE
TmAESRETMEF(Z
TYF ) o

MEREERBEMAE=T
R E

RAFERLERIEHESR
BimmsE =T iRHENEERME
EREM(ZFE M &) -

HEE RZZEEFZHL
FABEBRZEFHHEE
BIERNEN  EEHAE
X5 HIE#
RAFERNALBAES - 5
FEFEBIRIEAEE M
ENEIRREHER  EE
RMEMZH(ZF - HF
) o

/Y

w3

EFEXR  ZHEEEAH
BEAER

BT IEAR S B IR R MY 5E 35
BBRI2RPI  REERLF
B ARRNMEBRIES
MAEBZEBMARAZE
FEESHBECHEABERERXR
BuEEZR5 - REHEXER
ZEPF ) o



|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

®

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2024: three) Directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining individuals during the

year were as follows:

FE B HRRMEE

14 EBEZNENEERSE

EEBAEZHNE ®)
() BEERBFHMHAL

KEEFR - EREMZEHIHA
TH (2T ZmF - =
M)REF HBM&ERLX
EIZHMHPHEE B TR
FMATR EFEZFHMFE
W

2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET

Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind i + & 28 R EYH = 5,145 4812
Discretionary bonus BB IEAT 232 225
Pension costs BRIRE KA 18 18

5,395 5,055

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

B EFBE TS ERBER -

Emolument bands (in HK dollar) s E(ET)

HK$ 1,500,000 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T - 2,000,000 7T
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T - 2,500,000 7T
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000 % 7T
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T - 3,500,000 % 7T

Number of individuals

A

-:ﬂ 2024

No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of any office
in connection with the management of the affair of the Company

and its subsidiaries during the year (2024: same).

AEBLER LRAL(RE
EFENHMBER)XAIMEE
RIEMASIIERRERMLZ
BE(CZ-WF - HR) -
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& \ FEMBEmRME

|5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% BERRKE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
and and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings ~ improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
HELTH HE equipment RER vehicles moulds Total
kg NEEE  BBRRE  HOERE e IARER &%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TAL TAL TAL TARL FAL FAL
At 30th June 2023 R=B-=£XA=1H
Cost A 105992 76,487 205,664 16521 8908 3,794 417,366
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (53524) (68420) (170893) (14953) (7,394) (2468) (317652)
Net book amount KEFE 52,468 8067 34771 1568 1514 1326 99,714
Year ended 30th June 2024 BE-ECRE
AAZTHLEE
Opening net book amount HORmE 52,468 8067 %771 1,568 1514 1326 99,714
Additions Em - 777 6847 557 834 35 9050
Disposals e - (118) (8) ) - - (347)
Depreciation ik (2464) .727) (7904) (615) 477) Q) (14464)
Impairment e - - (894) - - — (894)
Closing net book amount HREEEE 50,004 5999 3812 1289 1871 1,084 93,059
At 30th June 2024 RZB-WEAAZTH
Cost AR 105992 76719 212251 16,489 8759 384 424034
Accumulated depreciation and ZHRERRE
impairment (55,988) (70720) (179,439) (15,200 (6.888) (2740) (330975)
Net book amount REFE 50,004 5999 3812 1289 1871 1,084 93,059
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

FE B HRRMEE

15 ¥X BERRE®R)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
HELH HE equipment %ER vehicles moulds Total
kgF NREE  HERRE BOERE "E  IARKESR a8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T TiEn TiEn TR TiEn
Year ended 30th June 2025 BE-Z-RF
ARB=THLEE
Opening net book amount HOREFE 50,004 5,999 32812 1,289 1,871 1,084 93,059
Additions & - 3,043 10,179 373 605 30 17,580
Disposals & (14) = (693) = = (14) (1)
Depreciation & (2,464) (2,486) (8:297) (913) (550) (264) (14,974)
Closing net book amount HREEEE 47526 6,556 34,001 4099 1,926 836 94,944
At 30th June 2025 RZBZEFXA=TH
Cost 7% 105,957 79,762 01,737 20212 8,809 3817 440,294
Accumulated depreciation and ZHAERFE
impairment (58,431) (73,206) (187,736) (l6,113) (6,883) (2.981) (345,350)
Net book amount REFE 41,526 6,556 34,001 4,099 1,926 836 94,944

Depreciation expense of HK$12,620,000 (2024: HK$ 12,1 11,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$235,000 (2024: HK$213,000) in distribution
costs and HK$2,119,000 (2024: HK$2,140,000) in administrative expenses.

As at 30th June 2025, the net book amount of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities amounted
to approximately HK$30,997,000 (2024: HK$29,456,000).

41\

FEEM 126200008 T(—F Y
F:012,111,000% 7T ) 2 B ¥ £ 38
K AR 0 23500008 (=T = 1
F 213,000 L) EREEDHEK
A J%22,119,000% T (= F — [0 4F -
2,140,000 7T ) B BIEEITBEH ©

RZTE-_AF A=1+H ~&HE
AR T FE 4258 4930,997,0008 (=
T — PO 4 29,456,000 oL ) 2 ¥
¥ BMERKBEEMRTRIT B
REBRSIRITEE -
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i \ HREMIFRRMEE

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(i)  Revaluation, depreciation methods and useful lives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of the

lease term or
40 to 50 years
- Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease

term or 5 years

- Machinery and equipment 8 years

- Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years

- Motor vehicles 5 years

- Tools and moulds 5 years
16 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

15 ¥X  BERRE®R)

() Efs FEHZATREAF
#
$57 B 68 R F A B AR
A S B E RS EE R
HrmE - BERRBZFE
52T 504 R SHE A -

— T REF HEHE

O+ZEhR+4F

ZEEE

—HEME HEHE

K& hEZEREE

— s Rk iR NEF

— &L KE HF
& NES

R
— "= HF
—THAREAR REF

HE

AR HAEEARRAAZRE
ZER

() REECEEREHMXERZ

ME
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET

Right of use assets EREEE

Leasehold land and land use rights HELH R TP AR 14,684 15412
Properties LS 8,667 6,438
23,351 21,850
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e IEmRRMEE
16 LEASES (Continued) l6 HE @
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet () RESEEEEHEXERZ
(Continued) IE (&)
As at 30th June 2025, the net book amount of leasehold land and RZZEZRFAA=+H
land use rights pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities B R+ AR RE
amounted to approximately HK$2,844,000 (2024: HK$3,714,000). #92,844,0008 J0( =& Z 04 -

3,714,000/8 70 ) B I FIR1T
AAREERERITEER -

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Lease liabilities HESE
Non-current FERH 4,363 I,344
Current nE 4,396 5,075
8,759 6,419
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement (i) REE Wz FKERZHE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Depreciation e
Included in cost of sales BEEHEXR 4,359 4,012
Included in administrative expenses BIETBXH 1,929 1,929
6,288 5941
Interest expenses included in STABBE R
finance cost (Note 9) MEF S (MEE9) 262 328
Expense relating to leases of FHRHEEEZHE
short-term and low-value leases (Note 8) B E A (FsEe) 6,421 7276

ANNUAL REPORT FE#H% 24/25 117



/o>

118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IEERRMEE

16 LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted
for

The Group leases various offices and factory. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of | year to 5 years, but may have
extension options as described in (v) below. Addition to right-of-use
assets during the year ended 30th June 2025 were approximately
HK$7,789,000 (2024: HK$2,458,000).

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Certain leased assets may

not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« RETHERDF

l6 HE#®)
(i) FEBZHEZEREALR

=
AEBEESERAERM
FE-HEAGR-—KA—ERF
WETHR  EREEEREE
EEMAMEERE RTX(
N - RBEZZT_RFA
A=+BLHFEZEREEE
A4 57,789,000 L (==
—PO4E : 2,458,000 7T) °

B AaRNEERKIEED
E W EBRERZ TRMER
Mg - REBEABBEHRESR
EERERERI - HEWE
TREMBRNGER - ETH
EEENSBIFERER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B I ER AR RE

16 LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted
for (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value

in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lease as starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was

received;

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has
a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use
that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing

rate.

(iii)

l6 HE#)
FEFHHETHRAAK

I (&)

HMENRERABEEPRES ZF
FHETARIR - MEEABEZA
Fo BIFERARAZIEEZEER

M - BIEEAEBUEER

BRBAESHRERAEEER
BRUBECEEMRESM

WA ZFIR -

AEFERERAE A%

)

o (AAIAT) 8 AR A Bl AR
ANIRESZF=ZT&
ERHMBHELAR
URBBEERE=TT8
BIARBE R ZES

ETHEERNZEEZR
E-oflmEEH &
R B RER -

et 18] B A (B B 3T B R &
%0 55 BUR ) B8 S0 % ER BN B 7]
Eﬁ?‘lfi’ﬂfiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ% R R
BREZEEMRE - A AKE
ERAEAZMNEIERERE
TEIREEFRIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S IEERRMEE

16 LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted

(iv)

()

(vi)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

for (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the

asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of |2 months
or less. Low-value assets comprise IT-equipment and small items of

office furniture.

Variable lease payments

Leases of the Group do not contain variable payment terms that are

linked to an index or a rate.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These options are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used
in the Group's operations. The extension and termination options
held, if any, are exercisable only by the Group and not by the

respective lessor.

Residual value guarantees

The Group did not provide residual value guarantees in relation to
leases during the year ended 30th June 2025 (2024: same).

RETHERDF

l6 HE#®)
(i) FEBZHEZEREALR

(iv)

v)

I (&)
EREEE—RREEREH
FHHEEMABREERE)
BWEBEHERE -

REEEMEEO MR RAER
BEEENHENEGRENE
SmPERSFAN - BMHEER
HEHEAI2@EAHATAET

BEREEEREENEE - K&
BEEERREMBRRE RN

i/ 2/NE =B

JEHEE
AEBZHELIHEENE 15
Heth Rz A BRENK K
AR R4 B B Z 5 Bk bt R 9]
WETE

TEERA I ZFERE

AEEZHEYEXHERS TS
KR\ IR B o 1 TR A
REEEANITHZKEEE
'\‘E c R Z R BIEE R

BEREVHAAEEMTSH
MR HAEAITEE

(vi) FIEFEEER

RZEZRFANA=THIEF
E'$%l%fﬁf§é}%’71?ﬁ
REFSKEEER(ZZZ

F AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI EE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REY=E
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At beginning of the year F9) 158,233 155426
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment BEMEZ ARBEGEX),
properties (Note 7) Wz (MEE7) (3,942) 2,807
At end of the year FAR 154,291 158,233

As at 30th June 2025, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligation

for future repair and maintenance (2024: Nil).

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the Group. They are carried
at fair value. Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss as part

of other gains, net.

BE_T-_RFAA=1TH K&
BERE - THREMNRERBERD
FREK(ZTE_WF : &)

REUEWE TEMHEE LM
BFEK BELAESERHESK
BmAERENEELMERERE
WIMAEEER - AREEED
EREBEENCESEMKE %
BRI NS HEE -
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AR B A5 ERaR MY aE

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair

value, by valuation method.

17 REWE &)
(a) AREEZEE
TERABGEEDTIRAAE
BARKEYE -

Fair value measurements at
30th June using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

RAB=1THRFAEARH

FUERBAELHN
DMAREBEEFE(FEIE)
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Recurring fair value measurements wEMANBETE
Investment properties: KREWE -
— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —IEREBN—-FHE 125,500 129,700
— Car park units - Hong Kong —FEL BB 3,900 3,870
— Commercial office units - Chinese Mainland — P A ZE 8B
—FER 5,326 5337
— Industrial building units - Chinese Mainland ~— T3 KE &I
— R EAM 19,565 19,326
154,291 158,233
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers in/(out) of fair REBENER AN EHE Y

value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There was no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continueq)

(@)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in investment properties
with fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) for the years ended 30th June 2025 and 2024.

(@)

FE B HRRMEE

17 BREWE#)
ARBELEH)
TERRARBE-_T-_RHER
—EomEXNA=tHILEE
RF A EATTEBEEAND
AEEHE(EIB)NEEY
EY IR

2025
Chinese Mainland Hong Kong Total
RE R 58 me
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FET
Opening balance H AR 24,663 133,570 158,233
Net gains/(losses) from fair value DAABEAERE
adjustment (BX) F8 228 (4,170) (3.942)
Closing balance HY#R B8R 24,891 129,400 154,291
2024
Chinese Mainland Hong Kong Total
o B A3 BB k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET
Opening balance H 4Rk 23,696 131730 155426
Net gains from fair value adjustment A /(BB T B F 5 967 1,840 2,807
Closing balance B K ER 24,663 133,570 158,233
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S IEERRMEE

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(b) Valuation process of the Group (b)

17 REWZE (&)
FEAEEHE

The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$154,291,000 (2024: HK$158,233,000) as at 30th June 2025
by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited (2024: Chung, Chan
& Associates), an independent professionally qualified valuer who
holds a recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued. Certain of the investment properties are leased to
third parties under operating lease arrangements, further summary
details of which are included in Note |7(e) to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed

by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes annually.

AEENKRENMERBEIEE
13@%1%%I§Iﬁ$1ﬁm B R
N ZEZWF: §E17)
E_ZE_RAFANA=+HMHE
£ 1542910008 (= F =M
1 158,233,000 7T ) k1
EMFBERARATEEER -
WHETHENIRE R ED
BB BT AL - 5D
?ﬁ’éﬁ%%%&%fﬁ%?%kmﬁ
TE=7  E—THBEREE
B RAMITE 1 7(e) PIEEE ©

AREE I AR I A s B HY
HE I HEMMEEETFERE

BT o
At each financial year end the finance department: EEREMBFRER - FBEH
&
®  Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report; * ZEHBUGHERSH
FIEERBA
®  Assesses property valuations movements when compared to ° A EMER FFE
the prior year valuation report; and HEREEERTHE
2/

BB (L ERETTA M

° Holds discussions with the independent valuer. .

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date REFEREBRE - F3EAR

between the CODM, finance team and the independent valuer. BENEDHHERLERR
% MG EE A ERED
T »
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(c) Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally
determined using the direct comparison approach which largely
involves the use of unobservable inputs and taking into account
the significant adjustments by making reference to the comparable
market transactions of similar properties in terms of time, location,

environment and other factors. These significant unobservable inputs

RS B I ER AR RE

17 BEWE @)

(c) T1HEHM
FMAEANTAEEG AL
NAREESE

AEENREME QA NEE
BRIBEERLBOL - A E
ERATABEBA  L2E
TR EME 2 AL BT 5K
R EARBRA L&Y R
HIEWMECERR LB R

include: BLREMAERAZER) -
HEEBATABERBGARHE :
Fair value at Relationship of
30th June 2025 unobservable inputs
R=B-1f Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs FTABEEA
it ZRAEE  fHERE FUBRBA FUBRBAEE HRABENBE
HK$'000
TER
Industrial building units — Hong Kong 125,500 Direct  Adjusted units rates HK$3642  The higher the adopted units'
I5AEEN-FH comparison LRBBAEE per square feet  rates, the higher the fair value,
approach YRR and vice versa
ERLEA 360BT ERABRERLS
DABEER  R2HR
Car park units - Hong Kong 3900 Direct  Adjusted units rates  HK$1,100,000 - HK$1,400,000  The higher the adopted units'
FEf-&% comparison BALENER per month per unit  rates, the higher the fair value,
approach BEf; and vice versa
BRI 1,100,000 7 ERAEMERES

F 1,400,000 7T

DRBESR  RZFA
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S IEERRMEE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continueq)

(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

17 REWZE (&)
(c) 1HE#M(E)

Fair value at Relationship of
30th June 2025 unobservable inputs
R-E-HE Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~AA=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs THREBA
i ZAAEE  RERGT  FTERBA FIRRRAEE HAAEENRE
HK$'000
TRR
Commercial office units and 5326 Direct Adjusted units rates RMB10,98I The higher the adopted units’
apartment — Chinese Mainland comparison  #FFHEEA (1K per square meter  rates, the higher the fair value,
HERLTEN -PERML approach BERK and vice versa
BRI 10981 AR ERAEMERES
DABEMR - RZFA
Industrial building units — Chinese Mainland 19,565 Direct Adjusted units rates RMBI 671 The higher the adopted units’
IERBE-HEMNY comparison BN ER per square meter  rates, the higher the fair value,
approach YRR and vice versa
ERHBE 1671 A\RH BRMEMNERER
DABELS RZHA

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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Bt 5 SRR B EE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continueq)

(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

o=
=a

17 REWZE (&)
(c) 1HERME)

Fair value at Relationship of
30th June 2024 unobservable inputs
s Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs FUBERHA
it ZRREE  fhERM FABEREA FBREAEE HRREENBR
HK$'000
TER
Industrial building units — Hong Kong 129,700 Income  Unit passing rents HK$10.19 - HK$12.12 The higher the rental value,
I5XREE-FA capitalisation BUREHE per month per square feet the higher the fair value,
method BYAR and vice versa
Wtk BRI0I9ETE 12128 BELR AAEEER
RZ A
Yields 3.12% - 3.85% The higher the Yields,
Z8% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
SEWE  RABEME-
RZ A
Car park units - Hong Kong 3870 Income  Unit passing rents HK$6,000 - HK$10,725 The higher the rental value,

FEf-F%

capitalisation
method

BUREEE
Yields

per month per unit
BE
BA6000BTE 107258

6.46% - 8.4%

the higher the fair value,

and vice versa

RESS AABESS
RZ A

of

The higher the Yields,
the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
SE@R  DABEME
RZ IR
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\ HREMIFRRMEE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWF @)
(c) Valuation techniques (Continued) (c) 1EEHMW (&)
Fair value at Relationship of
30th June 2024 unobservable inputs
RZ2-WF Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~NA=TA technique inputs unobservable inputs FUBERHA
it ZhRBEE  RERE FUBEREA FERGAEE HRREENBR
HK$'000
TER
Commercial office units and 5337 Income  Unit passing rents RMB2241 The higher the rental value,
apartment - Mainland China capitalisation B RRAE per month the higher the fair value,
BERLEBA-PEMN method per square meter and vice versa
WA g¥hx  BEES AAEESS:
BANAIARE RZ IR
Yields 2.32% The higher the Yields,
8% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

RZ A

Industrial building units — Mainland China 19,326 Income  Unit passing rents RMBI10.73 per month The higher the rental value,
IS5 REEN—FERY capitalisation  ENIRKHE per square meter the higher the fair value,
method YRR and vice versa

Yotk BRIOBARE  HEES ArEEES

RZ A

Yields 6.67% The higher the Yields,

ZEX the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
ZEXHE  AAEBEME
RZ T

ERFANYMEMISER KRS
BR AEEEEERAER
HEOR R AR RS ERM

Due to fluctuation on property market, the Group's management

adopted direct comparison approach during the year.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(d) As at 30th June 2025, the fair value of investment properties

pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$ 120,097,000 (2024: HK$40,542,000).

(e) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

FE B HRRMEE

17 REWE (&)
(d R-_ZE-_RAF~A=Z+H &
AW FEARE F{E A 120,097,000
BT (ZF Z Y4 : 40,542,000
BT)EERTRT AERE
EERSHRITEE -

(e) RETAIHBENLEHEE K
KB EWHESREMT

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT TET

Within one year —FR 5,720 6,120
In the second year M E A 3,990 3,990
In the third year =FR 2,710 3,073
In the fourth year P94 A 1,967 2,710
In the fifth year AER — 1,967
14,387 17,860

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 EFEE

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Technical know-how B 9l H B
Cost (DN 4,000 4,000
Addition = 2,333 —
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (2,233) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment REPRE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount BREFE 2,100 —

During the years ended 30th June 2025 and 2024, the Directors assessed
the recoverability of certain technical know-how and considered that the
carrying value of those technical know-how cannot be recovered through

its future use and provision was made accordingly.

REBEEZE-_AFR-_ZT-NFR
A=+BLEFEARA EFERTR
MBI BEYRAEEKE
BERATEERREAFRYE - Eit
EIEL R ERE -
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19 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

20

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

19 BAREFAEMEZE

Financial asset at FVOCI: BARBEFAHEMEZARE
M IS EE -

FEEMESED

Equity securities, unlisted

WM BEE
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
2,684 2,684

Financial asset at FVOCI represents 3.6% (2024: 3.6%) equity interest in an
unlisted company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is

denominated in HK dollar.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT AND LOSS

20

WA ERT ARAL 2 E Wt &R 5
BERRREEBHEBARESEM
ZIEMRBAZEDZ=ZHN(=F
TE BN - ke
BB T RELNL -

BAnBEFTAEHES
MM BEE

Financial asset at FVPL:
TG EE -

Keyman insurance contract, unlisted

BARBEFASHES

TREEEBRRAL  FELM

2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET
6,176 5,959

The financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as at 30th June 2025
represented an unlisted investment in a life insurance contract for one
executive director of the Group. The Group was the beneficiary of such
investment. The carrying amount represented the cash surrender value of

the policy at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value gain or loss on financial assets at FVPL was included in “other

(losses)/gains, net”.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level I, 2 and 3 during the year.

- RETHERLDF

RZZB-_AFAA=TBENERF
Bt A\BRZEREER LT
EENASRRANTHORLETHR
B AEERZRENTZEA © I
mERERENRESRRER -
BAFEFAEBGZZEMEEZR
AEEMNGREREN Hi(EBER),
Yoas — %58 ] -

RERNTESE| - F2REIBHH
EHH o
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21 SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2025 are disclosed
in Note 37.

(a)

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2025 was
HK$32,779,000 (2024: HK$22,170,000), of which HK$24,221,000
(2024: HK$25,034,000) was attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastics Materials Limited (“NHEPML"). The non-controlling interests

in respect of other subsidiaries were not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of RMBI3,664,000 (2024:
RMB10,179,000), equivalent to approximately HK$ 14,852,000 (2024:
HK$11,064,000), were held in Chinese Mainland and were subject
to local exchange control regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provided for restrictions on exporting capital from
the region, other than through normal dividends or remittance of

revenue income through import/export companies.

21 MIEB AT

w7

B

(@)

RZZE-_RAFRA=THENEZNH
RAHF BRI 37 WE -

B ARy HF I E

RZE-—RFNA=+HHIE
7 I %5 48 B8 532,779,000
JL(ZE Z Y4 £ 22,170,000 %
JT) v+ E 24221000 (=

T P4 ¢ 25,034,000 7T ) B

RERTEBHBRAR(R
BTZEHR ) - BEMKER

FAHIFE R TEAX -

BARH
BRETREBHMNRES RRITTF
K 13,664,000 AR (ZF =11
F 110,179,000 A R # ) (£ E
#714,852,0008 (=T = I
11,064,000 7T ) ) 77 K1
REAH - E A IMNE E
FTHE o L HNEE HIR Bl 18
BeELPESFIINGERBESR
BE ) om0 A B & Uk
w AIBRAN) o
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material

non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the

subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the

21 MYEAT &)
(a) EABHEHIER ()
ABEEAFITRIES N B
R A B ER KA
TR EmE A
1 25 0 BB 2 ) 105 B A S

Group. B} o
Summarised balance sheet FELEREX
NHEPML
RETRER
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT F#HT
Current M ED
Assets BE 101,614 98,139
Liabilities =N (21,641) (27,022)
Net current assets FREEE 79,973 71,007
Non-current IERED
Assets BE 35,942 34,909
Liabilities =N (539) (843)
Net non-current assets FIERBEE 35,403 34,066
Net assets FEE 115,376 105,183
Accumulated non-controlling interests R T IF1% Bl &1 24,221 25,034

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

- RETHERLDF
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised income statement and statement of comprehensive

Ft B A =) (&)
() EAHHIZEHER ()

75 2 W25 K K 2 E Rz K

eliminations.

M BUEE

income
NHEPML
REIREER
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Revenue Yas 134,209 140,688
Profit before income tax B 750 B4 A 13,319 11,201
Income tax expense I W (2,676) (1,634)
Post-tax profit PRt 1% 05 10,643 9,567
Total comprehensive income allocated to PHEWEEE
non-controlling interests TR FEFE il #E 25 2,533 2,064
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest ST IESIER R E (2,437) (714)
Summarised cash flows WEHERBEX
NHEPML
BETREZER
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBZRETR
Cash generated from operations REXBREEZRE 19,288 25,433
Income tax refund/(paid) BRE/ (B8 EH 1,304 (6,257)
Net cash generated from operating activities & &XEEMEEL 2 FHRE 20,592 19,176
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBAERZFERE (7,273) (3.897)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBRMERZEFRE (7,542) (9.919)
Net increase in cash and ReRBEeEHEZ
cash equivalents # 5,777 5,360
Cash and cash equivalents at FzHekBeER
beginning of year 18,136 12,776
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEe AR 2SR 23913 18,136
The information above is the amount before inter-company LA &R A Gl EzR=E]
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22 INVENTORIES

22 FE

2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FHTT

Trading stocks BOEBEERE 163,495 203,326
Raw materials JR¥ 55,564 68,179
Finished goods B 33,573 28,772
252,632 300,277

The cost of materials and trading stock recognised as expenses and

included in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement amounted
to approximately HK$1,046,956,000 (2024: HK$984,384,000).

Reserval of provision for impairment of inventories amounted to
HK$6,247,000 (2024: provision of HK$3,461,000) for the year was

included in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement.

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

23

RErEWERNEEX AP ER
AR 2B REZEBEFERAR
A H# 510469560008 T(=— &
T PO4F : 984,384,000 7T) ©

& B K FE B 86,247,000 T

Z T - B E3,461,000% 7T )
ZEEREEE  TREERER
AHERAR AR ©

BEZRUFRERERE

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

TExT FABT

Trade receivables =23 G 200,941 206,908
Less: loss allowance B EREURERE (726) (4,188)
200,215 202,720

Bills receivables JEW Z 1% 62,246 41,113
262,461 243,833

134 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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e IEImRRMIEE
23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 BEZRURKREVREE®)
The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following ESRUFOEEENTIEE R

currencies: BN

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TET

HK$ BT 19,750 37,404

RMB AR 167,588 157213

UsD e 13,603 12,291

200,941 206,908
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the EWE SFERNBEEBKBIRF
ordinary course of business. They are generally due for settlement within HEEEMBRKERS 2HRIE - YK
30 to 90 days and therefore all classified as current. Trade receivables are EH9RE—RE=TENTHE
recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional. N FADERRE - BKE S K
The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting BESREGHERESEER - K
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at SERBEUNERAaORERERAB
amortised cost using the effective interest method. WZEKRESHE At - HigM

BRI REIR B H AT & o

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date were as BHRWFIZEZA 2Rk DT
follows: o

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT TET

Below 90 days 0-90H 187,981 198,199
91 — 180 days 91-180 H 11,353 5,070
Over 180 days iBiE 180 H 1,607 3,639
200,941 206,908
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

23

Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

ESRWAKREREZELE &)

EUEBRZIBHBEETER—ANT
B A TINERREN

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

HK$ BT 411 244
RMB AR 61,835 40,869
62,246 41,113

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and

there is no recent history of default on bills receivable.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank's acceptance
bills amounting to approximately HK$44,426,000 (2024: HK$25,880,000)

with recourse in exchange for cash as at 30th June 2025. The transactions

have been accounted for as collateralised bank advances (Note 31).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period

is the carrying values of the receivables (2024: same). The Group does not

hold any collateral as security.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

- RETHERLDF

RBWRREzEEEEEQNAEER
#0 e BT 3 4 B W SR AR 2 R A8 o

RZZEZ_RAFANA=Z+THAAERZ
B B A B A5 444,426,000 8 L (=&
Z PY4F : 25,880,000 7T ) K IR 77 &
HEZGR TRITUBDRS - A
B 55 AEM Ay RITR
FE31) e

ERESAH ERARNESRER
AERLABEREFOEEREE
“E-MEFAR) o REBAE
BEAESERNERR °
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24 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

FEMIBHmRMEE

24 HttEWRE  AARK

DEPOSITS ®mEe
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Other receivables H b JrE U 518 5,276 10,045
Prepayments TEfTR 20,446 19,342
Deposits ®’e 2,699 2,367
28,421 31,754

25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 fTE€mIA

As at 30th June 2025, the Group had two (2024: two) outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts of HK$850,000 (2024: HK$736,000) mainly
to purchase USD (2024: purchase USD). The maximum notional principal
amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contract at 30th June
2025 was HK$257,400,000 (2024: HK$304,200,000).

RZEZRAFANA=Z1+H A&£H
EMH(ZE_MF: WH)HE
850,000 JT(Z = Z— P £ : 736,000
BIL)ZAXBINERREHNEE
NBET(ZEZNF : EET) ©
RZEZRAFANAZ+THEBRERR
WHNERBEHN 2 RAmREASHE
/257,400,000 ;T(= & = /Y 4 :
304,200,000 7T) °
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

RERAEER
(a) RE2RELEH

2025 2024

HK$'000 HK$'000

TExT TETT

Cash on hand He &R 666 497
Bank balances IRITHE R 170,274 103,736
Time deposits maturing within 3 months 3ME A WEHI R EBIE K 22,221 —
193,161 104,233

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

BORASSHEATIEEA
BB -

currencies:
2025 2024
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
HKS BT 21,280 13,144
RMB AR 143,676 61,224
usD ETT 27,808 29,695
Others Etb 397 170
193,161 104,233

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank

deposit rates.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents of HK$154,882,000 (2024:
HK$65,518,000) are deposited with banks in Chinese Mainland.
The remittance of these funds out of Chinese Mainland is subject to
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the Government of

Chinese Mainland.

138 NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED - BE/TAMRATF

RITESRRBERRITERZ
FENF R ERENA B

AEBzBHeRASHEHR
154,882,000/ (= T = I
£ 1 65,518,000 7T) AR B A
M RITET - BEBERE
LR B A e 2R A B At
B B B 2 SN B Il 3R 14 o
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
(b) Restricted bank deposits
As at 30th June 2025, RMB34,210,000 (equivalent to
HK$37,185,000) (2024: RMB33,724,000 (equivalent to
HK$36,657,000)) are restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for
serving of debt for revolving loans provided by the bank (Note 31).
The restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 0.84% (2024:
1.06%) per annum with remaining maturity less than twelve months

after the balance sheet date.

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables by invoice date is as

FEMIBHmRMEE

26 RERFAESEH®
(b) ZRHBRITFH

—E-_AfFXNA=Z+H"
34210000 A & ®(% B 8
37,185000% ;L )(Z & = 1M
& 133,724000A R ¥ (5 &
#936,657,0007 70 ) ) & X BR
BERTTIE R - TR IRITIER
RITRHEBRERNEERE
(BFFE31) - ZREIBIRITIFE
WBESFE 2ZTHNAMN(Z
ENF:BHZ—EETN)
ZEERE  UREEAMER
HEFERER AR+ @A -

27 BZRNARREANRE
EET LR L ES §:3: P

follows: BREEDITAOT
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Below 90 days 0-90 B 81,405 49,774
91 - 180 days 91-180 A 287 2,479
Over 180 days 3@ 180 B 948 1,225
82,640 53,478
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AR A5 SRR MY aE

27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying values of trade and bills payables approximate their fair

values, and are denominated in the following currencies:

27 BEFENRRENEE &)
BN RRAENEE Y EEE R

o\

<
o

B

HERAnRBEMEE XATIHIEES

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

TExT FETT

HK$ BT — 30
RMB AREE 15,631 35,152
usD ETT 67,009 18,296
82,640 53,478

28 OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

28 HttENREARER

ACCRUALS
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Contract liabilities aHBE 6,155 7,753
Other tax payables H A & A 750 78 2,827 1816
Accrued operating expenses BRI IR 17,583 20,339
Other payables H R 9,687 9,803
36,252 39,711

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

- RETHERLDF
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e M A5 R MR

29 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 29 BRARBRAGRE

Share capital RK
Number of
ordinary
shares of Share capital
HK$0.10 each nominal value
BREE RAHEE
0.10 8T Z HK$’000
ZRERYE FHET
Authorised: JEEMRA
At Ist July 2023, 30th June 2024, R-ZE-_=F+AH—H "
Ist July 2024 and 30th June 2025 _-\,_Ei/\ﬂ +8 -
ZEFELEA-AR
—E-RFRA=TH 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BT RERRAE
At Ist July 2023, 30th June 2024, RZE-_=F+H—H"
I'st July 2024 and 30th June 2025 ZEFEARA=1+H -
:E_Eitﬁ—ﬁﬁ
ZE_RFSRA=TH 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium R EE
HK$’000
THET
At st July 2023, 30th June 2024, RZEZ=F+H—H"
I'st July 2024 and 30th June 2025 ZE-FEARA=1+H -
ZEoMFEELEA-AR
“ERAFARA=TH 62,466
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30 RESERVES

30 &

Other reserves

HivfifE
Financial asset
at FVOCI
reserve
Capital BAREE  Exchange
reserve STAREM  fluctuation
(Note) Revaluation  2HWEH reserve Retained
BARE reserve BHEE EX Sub-total earnings Total
(i3] EftfRfk e RBREE Mt REER 2]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FER TiET FER FET TER
At Ist July 2023 RZZE-=F+A-H 3,119) 9,640 1,557 (1.316) 6,762 405,201 411,963
Loss for the year TEEE - - - - - (18,041) (18,041)
Fair value loss of financial asset BAREEGALMZERE
at VOCl WHBEELZ DA EEER — — 245 — 245 - 245
Transactions with BEEFRGE RS
non-controlling interests - - - - - 3574 3574
At 30th June 2024 R-B-MEXAZ+R (3.119) 9,640 1,802 (1316) 7007 390734 397741

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

- RETHERLDF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

30 RESERVES (Continued) 30 fRE#E)

Other reserves

Rt
Financial asset
at FVOCI
reserve
Capital BAREE Exchange
reserve stAEAft  fluctuation
(Note) Revaluation  ZHKZAY reserve Retained
EAGRE reserve HBEE EX Sub-total earnings
(Mz) B e REBRE Mt REER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRR TER THR TR TARL TR
At Ist July 2024 RZZ-ME+LA-R (3,119) 9,640 1,802 (1,316) 7,007 390,734 397,741
Profit for the year RERF — - - — — 339 339
Fair value gain of financial asset BRRABEFAEMZENS
at FVoCl WBBEEZ AR EERE - - - - - - -
Transactions with BRI RS R 5
non-controlling interests (2,215) - - — (2,215) - (2,215)
At 30th June 2025 RIZEZRERA=TH (5,334) 9,640 1,802 (1,316) 4792 391,073 395,865
Notes: BsE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TR
Capital reserve from reorganisation (Note (a)) BABEEAME @) 408 408
Changes of interests in subsidiaries without TERI R BRI H B
change of control (Note (b)) DRSS (T ) (5,742) (3,527)
(5,334) (3,119)

KRB Z BARE T3 RE B R
BRARZ ELREEER D #E
ER—NAAFRRBRBEEEE
ATEA]) BT ZIRAEEMR
BTGB B AR 2 IR AN A4
MEZEZH -

(@)  The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the (@)
non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and
the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1994 (the
“Reorganisation”).

R RN FANE R RS
(NREERIR)PTEENEARRE -

(b)  The balance represents the net changes in capital reserve arising from the (b)
change of interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

ANNUAL REPORT S ERE 24/25 143



@//)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Q e B I ER R 5T

31 BORROWINGS 31 fBE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT TET
Loans due for repayment within ER—FABEZER
one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) —BHEM(FIFE3.1(e)) 216,504 164,519
Trust receipt loans due for repayment FER—FAEBEZET
within one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) WIEE R —
BHER(FIFES.1(e)) 139,115 195,474
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 23) RITANRRBR BN (M 23) 44,426 25,880
400,045 385,873

AEERBEZRAERAR /’ﬂ?‘fﬁ
BE - XA TIEEREN

The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their
fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Group's

borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

144

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FT

HK$ BT 171,755 141,872
RMB AR 94,954 58,473
usD ETT 133,336 185,528
400,045 385,873

The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out

in the loan agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand

clause are as follows:

RIRE S5 B AR IR BE FEX
TERENGEHEREZEEESHE

N

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHETT

Within | year —F R 400,045 385,873

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

- RETHERLDF
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31 BORROWINGS (Continued) 31

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the

weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

FEMIBHmRMEE

B8 @)
NEERHERAAEE 2 ERYF
EEHHABENETEF/EMT -

2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
— At fixed rates —EEM=E 77,035 46,532
— At floating rates —FBFI= 323,010 339,34/
400,045 385,873

2024

Trust receipt loans BB E R 5.16% =
Short-term bank loans FRHIRITE X 2.63% 3.53%
Bank advances for RITARER BB BN

discounted bills — 1.72%

HK$ RMB usD
BT AR XL

4.93% 6.47% — 5.21%

— 4.20% 4.65% —

— — 2.76% —

Borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note
I5), leasehold land and land use rights (Note 16), investment properties
(Note 17) and restricted bank deposits (Note 26(b)) of the Group.

Bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted
for as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bank's acceptance
bills and the related proceeds of the same amount are included in the
Group's trade and bills receivables (Note 23) and short-term borrowings

respectively at the end of the reporting period.

ERNAEEHROHNME - BE R
wiE(REI15) HEL R LiE
(ML 16) ~ WEME(IEE17)
K 2R B RIT R (L 26(b)) &
AR

feMEREZ R FBRAR TRT
PRERITRERE J AEMCARTT
BR o REEABRAMFRAR
TTAERER AR RSN
DHBERERASEZE 5 EER N
JEU R (5 23) RAEHfEE -
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current
income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same taxation authority. The following amounts, determined after

appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

32 RIEWIE
EHEFEEARTENEREREE
ERBAREAGEEY  LETH
BRI RE — B - B R
EFEHEERBBEMKY &
HABEENE - THSBERES
BEEERNGIE -

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Deferred income tax assets FIEFIEE E 8,442 9,805
Deferred income tax liabilities RIERIEEE (3,833) (4,928)
4,609 4,877

The net movement on the deferred income tax is as follows:

BREEMSHAR R ARSI

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

At beginning of the year F7) 4,877 2,827
(Charged)/credited to consolidated income el RGIA)

statement (Note 10) MeR (H5E10) (414) 2,050

Disposal of a subsidiary HENERF 146 —

At end of the year FR 4,609 4877

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -+ REITHERDF



32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the

year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMIBHmRMEE

32 IEFEBIR(4)
FRETHASERBEZEH (A
F—#BE 2 BT T :

Fair value gains on  Accelerated tax

Deferred income tax liabilities: investment properties  depreciation Withholdings tax Total
REM*
ELHEAE ARBERE NEHRBHE ARH wE
Iyl 2024 BRIPE 2024 2024 Uk 2024
FLEXN HK$'000 IELEXOON HK$'000 MalEHNIN HK$'000 NEIEHIWN HK$'000
TEL Myl TET BEwiyd TET ERwivd TiEn EEeiv
At beginning of the year F1 1,158 810 3910 4539 700 1501 5768 6850
Charged/(credited) to consolidated ~ 7E4RA &R
income statement s/ (GTA) 20 348 (1,212) (629 (64)  (801) (1,256) (1,082)
At end of the year FR 1178 1,158 2698 3910 636 700 4512 5768
Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets: Provisions Tax losses depreciation Total
BEREEE £ BBER HERBHRE et
2025 BRWIZE 2025 BERWIZS 2025 BEEWIOZY 2025 EEEI0Z
HK$'000 WELEXOIN HK$'000 WEIEXONON HK$'000 WELEIVEN HK$'000 MELEUN
TR WEwi TET Bepipd TET BEpiyd TET Eeiy
At beginning of the year E3) 7976 7569 535 285 2,134 1823 10,645 9,677
(Charged)/credited to consolidated ~ fE&RAME &
income statement (08%),/ 3 A 2851) 407 1,189 250 ®) 311 (1,670) 968
Disposal of a subsidiary DEMBAR = — = — 146 — 146 —
At end of the year FR 5125 7976 1,724 535 2272 2134 9021 10645
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S ERRMEE

32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32 IREEBIE ()

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward MAEBO N &R M ERRLTA
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future FMEEERRNBE MBI RA
taxable profits is probable. At 30th June 2025, the Group had unrecognised Tﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂi%ﬂ?%ﬁﬁ&ﬂf‘éﬁm e
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable income amounted CHRZEZRFSNA=TH K
to approximately HK$502,245,000 (2024: HK$464,533,000). These tax £ H lI#ﬂ%ﬁfT,\nLLAﬁfﬁﬂiXh%
losses have no expiry date except that approximately HK$10,712,000 Tt i 2 1) 750 75 B 48 4 502,245,000 748
(2024: HK$12,974,000) will expire from 2025 to 2029 (2024: 2025 to TT(ZE Z 4 : 464,533,000% 7T )
2029). The potential deferred income tax assets in respect of these tax e 52 IR E P45 A & B 486,513,000
losses which have not been recognised amounted to approximately (= & Z M £ : 81,059,000
HK$86,513,000 (2024: HK$81,059,000). T)e AT A ¢ E_T_-N

F(ZZ_@WF: _FT_RFE

—ZF ﬂi)iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬂgﬂam
A10,712,000/8 jo(=— & — 19 4 :
12,974,000 7%) °

As at 30th June 2025, deferred income tax has not been provided for in RZZEZRAFAAA=F+H ' x5H
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences WABRETHRBEAGHBRARZE
attributable to unremitted profits earned by certain Chinese Mainland ik ER A B R g M) £ 49 496,460,000 78
subsidiaries of the Group amounting to approximately HK$496,460,000 TL(ZZF Z V4 : 463,857,000/% 7T )
(2024: HK$463,857,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of LEREZHEREHERE  BEAR
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the SEUESZEEREGE B ER
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. During Bl UERRAIRZ B R ZE S =
the year ended 30th June 2025, deferred income tax amounted to AT HE - RZTEZ_RFN
approximately HK$636,000 (2024: HK$700,000) has been provided for RA=+H XEEZ—FEFEAM
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of withholding tax B AR ZIER R 2K el ge 5 5

attributable to unremitted profit earned by a Chinese Mainland subsidiary BB B B 3R g 1 60 7B BB AR 4E HE AV
of the Group that shall be distributed in the foreseeable future. 636,000/ 70 (== =~ P9 £ : 700,000

BT ZIRIER A -
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33 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 33 KRARERER
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash (a) BBHAGREEEXEBEL
generated from operations: ZHREHE & -
2024
HK$'000
FET
Profit/(loss) before income tax &M, (E8) 9,470 (4,638)
Adjustments for: FHEIEE:
— Depreciation of property, e/ E R =05
plant and equipment RIBITE 14,974 14,464
— Amortisation of intangible asset —mEEEN 233 —
— Losses/(gains) on disposal of property, —HEME  BER
plant and equipment BEZEBE (W) 152 (566)
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —[FRAEEENE 6,288 5,941
— Fair value (gains)/losses on derivative —INEERHIEHN AR
financial instruments BEM), BB (474) 543
— Fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets ~— &AL BEFT AE B
through profit and loss BRNMBEEAR
BE(k=), &8 (217) 1,398
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — P 2 B e (o) —
— Unrealised fair value losses/(gains) on —RERREMEZ AR
investment properties EEEE () 3,942 (2,807)
— Reversal of loss allowance on —B S RYREE
trade receivables | (1,546) (500)
— (Reversal)/provision for impairment of - GFEREEREER)
inventories, net B — ¥ (6,247) 3,461
— Interest income — M EHA (484) (865)
— Interest expense —FMBEZH 21,688 23,601
— Impairment of property, o/ E BN e
plant and equipment ZRfE — 894
Changes in working capital: EEEEET
— Inventories A=t 53,892 (36,800)
— Trade and bills receivables, — B FREBGRREY -
other receivables, B E A UK -
prepayments and deposits AR RIRE (13,749) (32,973)
— Trade and bills payables, — B RNRKLERN
other payables, 8 HENRR
deposits received and accruals BT MIERREA 26,246 (541)
Cash generated from/(used in) EREBHEE/(ER)
operations ZHB& 114,067 (29,388)
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C\ AR A5 SRR MY aE

33 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 33 MEBRERERMH
(Continued)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from (b) EHEREEREZXZA HE
sales of property, plant and equipment comprise: ¥ - BERRE R FFE
B
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Net book amount (Note I5) AREDFE (PRE15) 721 347
(Losses)/gains on disposal of property, HEWE. HEIERE
plant and equipment (Note 8) 2 (E8),/ W
(PfsEs) (152) 566
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERZE
plant and equipment ITIESE N 569 913
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33 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(c)

The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities is as follows:

FEMIBHmRMEE

33 MEREFRER®S

() BEXB>EREEHTE
mrE

34 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

At 30th June 2025, the Group had the following capital commitments for

Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
B8 HEEE ECL ]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
TR FTERT TET
At Ist July 2023 R-E-=ZF+A—H 338,922 9,928 348,850
Cash flow WeR
— Proceed from loans —EER 1,116,683 — 1,116,683
— Repayment of loans —EBEER (1,079,395) — (1,079,395)
— Net increase in trust receipt loans ~ —{Z 5EUE B FUFL N 9,663 — 9,663
— Repayment of lease liabilities —-BEHERE — (5,967) (5,967)
Non-cash changes FEeE
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEREEM — 2,458 2458
At 30th June 2024 RZZE-MFEA=+H 385,873 6,419 392292
Cash flow WEM
— Proceed from loans —EER 390,073 — 390,073
— Repayment of loans —BEEXN (319,542) = (319,542)
— Net decrease in trust receipt loans ~ —{EFEHUR EFFR L (56,359) — (56,359)
— Repayment of lease liabilities —EREEERE — (5,449) (5,449)
Non-cash changes FREEH
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEBEEM = 7,789 7,789
At 30th June 2025 RZZ_RFXA=1H 400,045 8,759 408,804
34 AiE
BEAE

addition of property, plant and equipment:

R-ZE-_RAFA=+H K~&£H
BREWE  WERKE 2 ERERE

Contracted but not provided for

EROERER

W
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT
1,441 2,300
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares.
The remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of
the shares of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain

Directors of the Company.

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the
Group and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note 14

to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Transactions with related parties
In addition to those disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the following transactions were carried out with

related parties:

BEALXS

N & [E #H Good Benefit Limited (£
RBHERREEEMA 2 2AF])
ZH - EEBARR AN AT =
B BB 2T NE
LR #EREZFA ° Good Benefit
Limited BE £ K& BB AR A
LEDERERFTA o

ARRIMBEFHERRSAEE L
EZERAR  HFAFMO NS
BRI E 145 -

(a) EBEBBALHIXE
RATE BIEIARMI G 14 PR ER
Hh - BRI A THITHR 50
T

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Lease payment to related parties: TRABATZHERNK
— Build Fair Limited (Note i) —RBAERAE (M) 989 989
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BAERBRHABR A
Company Limited (Note i) (B3 Gi)) 925 925
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Note i) — Rt ER S A (PR & (i) 300 276
2,214 2,190
Addition of right-of-use assets: EFREEEREM
— Build Fair Limited (Note i) —SBAERAF(KFEG) 900 1,696
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —AEBRAERAAE
Company Limited (Note ii) (P &E (ii)) — 557
900 2,253
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FEMIBHmRMEE
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35 BABEALRZ (@)
(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued) () BIBHALHIXE (&)
Notes: faE
0) Build Fair Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr. HUI Sai Chung, a (i) SRAERNGBAEARRES
Director of the Company. A EAE R EHWE -
(i) Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited is a company wholly iy BRZBEHARAFHAR
owned by Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, a Director of the Company. NAEFFEREELERE
g o
(i) Mr. HUI Sai Chung is Director of the Company. (iy FIHREERKAARES -
Lease payment made to related parties are on mutually agreed basis. S TEBATHEMEER

RIE T REERITY

(b) Year-end balance arising from related party transactions (b) BB LXK 5 FEAREGHE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Lease liabilities to related parties: THEBAT 2 HERE

~ Build Fair Limited —RBRARRDA 800 1,705

— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BARERBRHABRAA
Company Limited 1,175 905
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung — AR A 124 412

2,099 3,022
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FA I HRRMEE

36 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in

the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2025 and

36 RARERAT
EZRBARAIZ&EZERAF A
Good Benefit Limited (£ 3 B # B =
BEAMKIZZAT]) -

37 EEHBAT

RZEBE-_RAFR_ZE_WHF A

2024: =tB AREZEEHERRLW
-
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest
*kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group
Name ML 5 BERTRHR Principal activities rEEREEZ
=1 R+ ANEE RAEREXR TEXRK RS
2024
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100 100
Company Limited EEERRES Ep REER
(Note b) (BfsEb)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Chinese Mainland HK$93,200,000 Manufacture and sale 100 100
Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 93,200,000 47T of colorants
SRELBRERMERAT enterprise and compounded
F B A3 plastic resins
SNEBEDLE SHERHEEEHR
EEBA KR
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary ~ Manufacture and trading 100 100
Technology Limited B shares of HK$ | each of colorants
BEEEEFRAA] 500,000 ISR EE and compounded
BT BB plastic resins
SEREEEEHR
& B AR PE
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture of 76.2 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited 5% shares of HK$ | each engineering plastic
RETRBHERRATR 2,000,000 R B AR EE products
BT BEm BUETRREBER

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -
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RS B I ER AR AT

FEME LT (#E)
RZE-_RAFR-_ZE-MF A
=+HB AATRNZEEMBLFM

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2025 and
2024: (Continued)

™ (%)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name AL R B BRTRHR Principal activities rEEHEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R B3 38 FrEkER
2024
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary Investment holding 100 100
Materials Limited B shares of HK$ | each and property holding
BREPBRHABRAF Looo kB REE @ REAEBREBAEYE
BT BB
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$ I each (note c)
500,000 B &A% E (B
| BT BT
EIERR (B 3T o)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Trading of 100 100
Materials (Hong Kong) B shares of HK$ | each plastic materials
Limited 500,000 & G AR & BEEZBRM
REZBBRH(FE) | BT BB
BRAA
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic Chinese Mainland HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale 100 100
Materials Co., Limited * wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000 8 7T of colorants
LR EERBRE enterprise and compounded
BRAF] B A plastic resins
*SEBELER SLERBHEEEEIR
EEAMEE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Chinese Mainland HK$ 10,500,000 Manufacture and sale 100 100

Materials Co., Limited

* wholly foreign-owned

10,500,000 8 7T

of colorants

BEEREBRBRE enterprise and compounded
BRAF R A plastic resins
BB RE ERHEEEH R

EEAKENE
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37 TEMBAT &)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2025 and RZZE_RAFR_T_MFERA
2024: (Continued) =t+H - ARAlzEENEARMN
T (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest
* kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group
Name AL R B ERTRAR Principal activities rEEREZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R B3 38 FrE R
2024
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale 100 100
REEEER AR BE shares of HK$ | each of plastic products
5000l BREE - RERKEZBER
| BT BB
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Chinese Mainland US$200,000 Trading of engineering 76.2 76.2
Materials (Shanghai) * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 % 7T plastic products
Co., Limited enterprise BEEIRSBBER
RITREM(LE) REIA
BRAA SEBERE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Chinese Mainland US$100,000 Trading of colorants 100 100
Trading Co. Limited * wholly foreign-owned 100,000 37T and compounded
EEREFHEARLA enterprise plastic resins
B it BEEECHLES
SEBELE AR e
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic  Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary Trading of engineering 76.2 76.2
(Hong Kong) Limited B shares of HK$ | each plastic products
BETRIH(FR) 1,000,000 % & A I & BEETRZBEM
BR AR BT BB
I56  NGAIHING HONG COMPANY LIMITED + ZE(THRAH
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2025 and

2024: (Continued)

RS B I ER AR AT

37 FEME AR @)

RZE-_RAEFRER-_ZT_HFH
Z+H ARBZEBHEBERAF M
™ (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

* kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name AL R B BRTRHR Principal activities rEEHEZ
=1 RAEANER BRAEREL B3 38 FrEkER
2024
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Chinese Mainland US$1,200,000 Manufacture and sale 100 100
Materials Company Limited * wholly foreign-owned 1,200,000 & 7T of colorants
EFIRETERRE enterprise and compounded
ERAA B A3 plastic resins
SNEBEDLE SHERHEEERR
& B AR
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing Chinese Mainland RMB 10,000,000 Trading of 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A F&# plastic materials
BMMRZEEE S ERDE enterprise BEHRER
REIAH
*NEBELE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale 100 100
Company Limited 5% shares of HK$ | each of biodegradable
REGRR2ER AR AR 10,000 A EE plastic materials
| BT EBR BERHERRERBRH
Ngai Hing Engineering Chinese Mainland HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 76.2 762
Plastics (Dongguan) * wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000 %8 7T plastic products
Company Limited enterprise EETREBER
SRITREMARRR FEAL
*SNEBELE
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FA I HRRMEE

37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2025 and

2024: (Continued)

37 FEME AR #)
RZIE_RAFE_ZE_MWNFERA
=48 ARFAZFIEHELTW
T (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

* kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name AL R B BRTRHR Principal activities rEEHEZ
=1 RAEANER BRAEREL B3 38 FrEkER
2024
Shanghai Coltec Advanced Chinese Mainland US$200,000 Trading of colorants 100 100
Materials & Technologies ~ * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T and compounded
Company Limited enterprise plastic resins
Nabisl - SUi R ER REsT B A3 BEEECHLES
BRAT O ERALE A
Dongguan Coltec Advanced ~ Chinese Mainland HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants 100 100
Materials & Technologies ~ * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 % 7T and compounded
Company Limited enterprise plastic resins
REBEEHMHBIE RE A EEERAIRES
ARAT SEBERE A R BE
Tianjin Ngai Hing Hong Chinese Mainland US$400,000 Trading of 100 100
Trading Company Limited  * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 7T plastic materials
RERETHEARRDA  enterprise BEEZBRH
B A3
SEBERE
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 100 100
RETIREBRAA] N shares of HK$ | each REER
10,000 B & B EI (B
| BT BB
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong  Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 Trading of 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& plastic materials
BN TSR AT B IR B enterprise BEEZRBRE
BRLA REI A
*NEBELE
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2025 and

2024: (Continued)

e M IS R M aE

37 FEME AR @)

RZE-_RAEFRER-_ZT_HFH
Z+H ARBZEBHEBERAF M
™ (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

* kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name AL R B ERTRAE Principal activities rEEHEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R B3 38 FrEkER
-:ﬂ 2024
Chongging Ngai Hing Hong ~ Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 Trading of 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& plastic materials
EETRETEBRM enterprise EBBBERE
BRAR B A3
EBELE
Shanghai Ngai Hing Hong Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 Trading of 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R# plastic materials
FERBTEBRRY enterprise BEBBBER
BRATA F B A3
EBELE
NHH Technology Company ~ Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale — 76.2
Limited 5% shares of HK$ | each of personal care
RERBER DA 2,000,000 Bz & % products
HE BT BEEMAZEER®
-3l
Notes: BT -

(a)  All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands are
limited liability companies. All subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland

are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

(b)  Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held
by the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held

by the Company.

(@ MARERRABEARHSIM
RZzMBARERBREMER
Al o FTARFPBERNMRY 2 HEA
A RINEEEDRE

(b) FAALFIZEZME DR RKNg
Hing (International) Company
Limited A AR R EEIF AN - A
RARBEREE -
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37 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2025 and
2024: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)  The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited (“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in
the profits or surplus assets of NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive
notice of or attend or vote at any general meeting of NHHPML in respect of
their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by
the holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

(d)  The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

During the year ended 30th June 2025, the Group acquired 15.5% of the
issued shares of Monceris Limited. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of HK$2,215,000.

During the year ended 30th June 2024, the Group acquired 49% of
the issued shares of NHH Technology Company Limited. The Group

recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$3,574,000.

Capital injection from non-controlling shareholders

During the year ended 30th June 2025, the non-controlling shareholders
have injected HK$9,82 1,000 into Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics InnOvation
Ltd..

- RETHERLF

37 FEME AR #)

38

RZE-_RAEFRER-_ZT_HFH
Z+H ARBZEBHEBERAF M
™ (&)

BaE : (&)

(0 HEBBRREARAR(HE])E
BREBRIERD ZFHAEABRESE
BEZ G MARBREED K - THE
RS E IS E 2T A {0 W R B
RAGRESHHERABRRAEH

RELERE-

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited JAZR & 48 (B 478 TR
SERIEROFHEARLATEERZ
SR 2 BBARHE -

() LERIHEERAUAFEEER
REZFEABRAEEEEFE
ZEBERD 2 ARAHBRE] - E
ERRMHETNEMH B AR ZFE
ELEBNILE -

BFERERZIRS

B ASENBTECBEARAA
155% M B2 BT - NEBERIE
o2 I 2SR 4 2,215,000 5 TT

BE-_Z-_NFNA=Z1+THLF
B AEERETREMBERA
Al49% BB BTN - XEBEER
FEPE IR 2R > 3,574,000 8 7T ©

HEFIRRZTE
REBEZZE-_RAFA=TAHLHF
B EEHIRR MR ETIZB A (A
B BRABEE 9,821,000 T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A I IR ERMIEE
39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39 emTAGRERD
2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt aE F#E T FHIT
Financial assets at amortised cost BKEE-HaMK
EE REBHERE
Trade and bills receivables I ERF R EREE 262,461 243,833
Other receivables and deposits Hitn el sk R ix & 24 7,975 12,412
Restricted bank deposits ZHIKERITIER 26 37,185 36,657
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeFH 26 193,161 104,233
500,782 397,135
Financial asset at FVOCI EAARBEFTAHM
2HKBRNMEEE
Financial asset at FVOCI BRAEEGTAEM
2HEKENIBEE 19 2,684 2,684
Financial asset at FVPL A E-RAREE
ERBERIE
Financial asset at FVPL PaE - ZAREE
FEiBE BRI 20 6,176 5959
Financial liabilities-fair value A E-RAREE
through profit or loss EBBEHEIER
Derivative financial instruments TEERTAE 850 736
Financial liabilities-other financial A E - HEg
liabilities at amortised cost B8 REBHRK
Trade and bills payables B RN TR ENRE 27 82,640 53,478
Other payables and accruals Hiv eI R TERRE A 28 21,984 22,018
Lease liabilities HEARE 16 8,759 6,419
Borrowings BE 31 400,045 385,873
513,428 467,788
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY

Balance sheet

40 KRENEEEERKRGH

HE2E
BEREX

2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Liksd THER THETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B ARIRE 62,711 62,711
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE M5 BT B8 X B3R 137,969 102,525
Financial asset at fair value through BARBERTAEH
profit or loss BRnMBEE 6,176 5959
Other receivables H 1t & WK 258 207
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS ER 533 459
144,936 109,150
Total assets WEE 207,647 171,861
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable AEABRRELRER #E
to the Company’s equity holders
Share capital [N 36,920 36,920
Share premium M A B 62,466 62,466
Other reserve H bt 62,511 62,511
Retained earnings IR 8 A 3,970 4,684
Total equity B 165,867 166,581
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals ERE A 887 818
Borrowing BE 40,893 4462
41,780 5,280
Total equity and liability BEZREE 207,647 171,861

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of RAAAMEERBERCHESER

Directors on 29th September 2025 and was signed on its behalf —ERFAAZTABHER I
RREFSEE

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

it EE SR

Director Director

EE EE
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FEMIBHmRMEE

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 40 RXAFRNEERBRERE
THE COMPANY (Continued) BB (E)
Balance sheet (Continued) EEEMEX(E)
Note: (a) Reserve movement of the Company Mzt @) NARIFEEE

Other reserve -

contributed

surplus
(Note)
HAbf#E — Retained
BB earnings
(M=) R &7
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
At Ist July 2023 R-ZE-=F+H—H 62,511 7,063 69,574
Loss for the year REFEIE — (2,379) (2,379)
At 30th June 2024 R-ZZEZWFESRA=TH 62,511 4,684 67,195
At Ist July 2024 RZZZHE+A—H 62,511 4,684 67,195
Loss for the year REEE — (714) (714)
At 30th June 2024 R-ZE-_RFA=+H 62,511 3,970 66,481
Note: Ptz -
Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the RNAFE 2 EHEAE R JTHNgi Hing
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at (International) Company Limited A E 484
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount MEHBRZEERRESEAAAIRES
of the Company's shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the AT 2RO EEME 2EZ8 - A%
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the underlying ErEHBRRDENBAGBEMNE QR
subsidiaries. ZIEBHEER -
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable BEBRE-NN—FREDE BHA
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay BADIKTRE  BRIEESEBRERIERE
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the ()R A RR AT IR B sl fE T 5 IR 15 R
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable BESEUEBEEASIMz AE () AT
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its BEZAZEEESSAMENEAR
issued share capital and share premium account. MEBETRARRNEE 2 EE - Bl

ZATMPFEIRSIRN RS M EH R
RPEE DI ©
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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B IS ERRMIRE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

41.1 Principles of Consolidation

(@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the group. They

are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.1 Principles of Consolidation (Continued)

)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate

reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

41.2 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,

has been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company that

make strategic decisions.

41.3 Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

41

RS B I ER AR AE
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
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B IS ERRMIRE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the

consolidated income statements.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“finance income” or “finance costs". All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income

statement within “other (losses)/gains, net".

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive

income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss account are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the

rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in

consolidated other comprehensive income.

RS B I ER AR AE
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(@

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company

are reclassified to consolidated income statements.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and

are not recognised in consolidated income statements.

41.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or

recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item

will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured

reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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RS B I ER AR AE

4] SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 4] FESTTHEREBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 414 Y¥  BMERZ (&)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are

recognised in the consolidated income statements.

41.5 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
Land held under operating leases are accounted for as investment
properties when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. Investment property is measured initially at cost,
including related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,

investment property is measured at fair value.

Any gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value or disposal
of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.
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B IS ERRMIRE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.5

41.6

Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on valuations carried
out by external valuers. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statements as valuation gain or loss in “other

(losses)/gains, net”.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the consolidated income statements.

Intangible assets - Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired
technical know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of five years.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.

41.8 Financial assets
(a)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit

or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(@)

)

(©

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when

its business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecogntion

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or

loss are expensed in profit or loss.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(©

Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash

flow characteristics of the asset.

- Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other (losses)/gains, net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated

income statement.

RS B I ER AR AE

4] ETEESTTHEME@®)

41.8 MIBEE (&)

(©

FE(E)

EETHERAS KA
ENRZBSRE - W
BERAXTETANI
BEERFLEREZE -

EFTA

75 T B2 & M5t B
RRAREEREER
AREREBHOHES
B -

- EEERAR : RRElK
ReanBRen&E(g
RNAE R B
)R E E IR E K
KT8 - ZFEYH
BEELNNBU
AEREERF X
FEAR B - B
H R E R
Wk BEREER
BamfER - LWER
PEE 3¢ W 28 Ko SRR
[E (&8 ) I’
@ FR 25 - B
EERERA IS
RPUNBEBERRE 2
5] o

ANNUAL REPORT FEIRE 24 /25

173



/

174

>

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FA I ERRMEE

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(©

(@

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group's management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
consolidated income statement as “other (losses)/gains, net”

when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the

receivables.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.9

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or
losses depends on whether the derivative is designated and qualified
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. Assets and liabilities are classified as current if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-

current.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated

profit or loss within “other (losses)/gains, net”.

41.10 Inventories

41.11

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.12 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables) are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

41.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown

in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

41.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has a

right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

41.16 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. The Group meausres its tax balances
wither based on the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better predication of

the resolution of the uncertainty.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

,5\

B IS ERRMIRE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is

settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

- RETHERLF

41

TESTBERBMER)

11.16 BERRBELZFTEH (HF)

()

AL 19

I SE B R R R R
SERAMEZHERL
A W5 R A5
HEME 2 G2 ER
o AT EIEEBE
& {8 B K R A
ELATFRR - B
IS O I O A 3
CHEARRHIAESR
EfEmEE AEET
RPHLEYEEHR
BERBAE T EE
18R 2 3B B R AT 40 B
IEBER FTEA
B o JEJE BB A
R B E AR I
ER AR BB
MR AT BE A R R
T TR 2 O
A2 BE (AR EE -

RAFERAFERE
MEZBEERERE -
REMEZEEELR
ERAEBHEREBRE -

EEMBEEEAERK
RA] R A R AIE A
FREZEEEEZENR
B8 - T8 TLARER -

EEMBREEELR
A RE A R R SR AB
i A ikt BT 8 AR R =
EmiER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

,5\

B IS ERRMIRE

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.17 Employee benefits

(@)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme
is a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further legal or constructive obligations to pay further

contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the
MPF Scheme, the Group and its relevant employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income with a maximum of HK$ 1,500 per month,
as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and

immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution
schemes for its employees in Chinese Mainland. Contributions
are made by the Group on a monthly basis to those state-
sponsored retirement plans based on a percentage of the
relevant income of the relevant employees. The Group has no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond
its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(©

Pension obligations (Continued)

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits
expenses when they are due and are not reduced by
contribution forfeited by those relevant employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a

cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Long service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service payments
to its employees upon termination of their employment or
retirement when the employees fulfil certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for

their service in the current and prior periods.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Option Scheme"”). The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, including any market
performance conditions; excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting conditions; and including

the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
performance and service conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)  Share-based compensation (Continued)

(e)

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and share premium when the options are exercised.

Under the terms of the existing Share Option Scheme of the
Group, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible
participants to take up share options to subscribe for the
shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. No share options were granted or exercised
during the year. As at 30th June 2025 and 2024, there is no

share option outstanding.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of
bonus plan are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when

they are settled.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 41 FEEFBEBME@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.18 Provisions 11.18 1B1E
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or BRERAEERBESHMmME
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that ﬁ(fﬁﬁ%Zﬁi@EﬁfﬁiE\ﬁ i
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; BEEHE \//|LHjJ//(/ﬁ1 zlﬁ
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not T Frigsd - R EZE
recognised for future operating losses. LEigﬁ\ﬂfuuj A SEfAET o $IRIK

BEZERYTEELEE -

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood MR ETHEUERE  EESR
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by BEMTE &R LA 8
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is % DEREREELBENR
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any BE - BER—-—EEEMNZE
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. ] —{E1H B 2 &R ag 1t

PR ADAEREE -

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures BERANANXIRRIENAFE
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate EBNEHEEENHAXNERE
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money E - EAMERMERTSHE
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision EREEMNEBRETESRR
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense. B AT A o B2 A [ 38 2= M 38 0

B EBER R ERX -

41.19 Leases 119 HE

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a HEEEZEERBBYZA

present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of REE%EFE - -HEBGERE

the following lease payments: ATHEERKZFRE

* fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less o BENZF(BREELERE
any lease incentives receivable; ) BEREKREE

B

® the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is . Tl\fﬁ$$ EEBE®ETE

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and BEEEE AAZE

BREZITEE R

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease ° finl 1 HA IR R R R B 1T
term reflects the lessee exercising that option. mIEHEEERE AIX

HERIEHEZ TR -
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.19 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension

options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

®* any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

41.20 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and

the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

41.2] Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company'’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders for final dividend and Board of Directors for interim
dividend.

41.23 Losses per share
(1) Basic losses per share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing:

. The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than

ordinary shares; and

. by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and

excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share adjusts the figures used in determination

of basic loss per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary

shares, and

the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of

all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial

Five Year Financial Summary

hEFBBHME

AEENBELEMRFESFZEE

years are as follows: BERBEWOT :
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
GLEXOON  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FHT FHET FHET FHET FHIT
Results B
Profit/(loss) attributable to N EIRER B
equity holders of the Company wmF (EE) 339 (18041)  (52,007) 56598 89,865
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEEEAE 1,068,579 1016883 991269 1227658 1,102,156
Total liabilities AfEaE (540,549)  (497,586)  (454,765) (568,612) (482,012)
Non-controlling interests FERE R (32,779)  (22,170)  (25,155)  (33,787)  (31,727)
Capital and reserves attributable N AR R (G AR AR
to the Company's equity holders K f#E 495,251 497,127 511,349 625,259 588,417
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Schedule of Principal Properties

EFEMER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

As at 30th June 2025 and 2024, the Group had the following investment
properties in Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland:

Eﬁ%%
\—? ﬂ&—?—mﬁz/\ﬂ +E| Z’S
SEFAUNTERTEAMLZIREY

188

As at 30th June 2025

Eg

R-BE-REXA=1+H

Category of Group’s
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
g Hb 31 Rz HEHIE FEEEDS
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory [EHES rh HA
THERESN—FE Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on |lth
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BB DB NR KR EE9-155% R AR BEHT 10-165%
BETERL2BAE  3182F ¢B7TR8E - 812
8ZF 1012345 6" 7TR8E IR
8% - 2IB3IERKRA3N
Industrial building units — Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
Chinese Mainland Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Chinese I HER
THAREBER— Mainland
B A3, URPEAERERETEFRAFREN ZTEX
E
Car park units — Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. Commercial Short 100%
Hong Kong 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. [0-16 Wo Shing Street, [EES k2 HA
FEL—FE Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BB DB MR KR EE9-15 5% R AR BEHT 10-165%
BIETEAD3 14 R ISHEBL
Commercial office units Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Commercial Medium 1 00%
and apartment — Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 Nanjing [EES H i

Chinese Mainland

Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Chinese Mainland

PEEWNEEN — AR B A KO T R R R R % 349 S MODO g R B
A A D R KE 6161216131614 1615% 1616

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -
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Schedule of Principal Properties

EX-2YE 2.5

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (Continued) BREWE #)

As at 30th June 2024

R-ZZE-MWFEXA=1+H

Category of Group’s
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
it b3t Ay HENIE FEE#ER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory [EES FRER
ITERESMG—FE Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on | Ith
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BRI A E MR ARKEES-155% R REEHT 10-165%
BIETEPL2E4E  3B2E - 6B7R8E - 812
8 - 10#1:2-3 456 7TR8E IR
8FE - 1I2B3ERKE 3N
Industrial building units — Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
Chinese Mainland Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Chinese TIT% R HA
THRREEMN - Mainland
B A URPEAEREREMEFHERA BN ZTEX
E
Car park units — Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. Commercial Short 100%
Hong Kong 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, [GES 52 A7
1REA— & Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BRI DB MR AR S-155% R RBEHT 10-165%
BIETEAL3 S 14 R ISHFEFEL
Commercial office units Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 Nanjing [GES H Hj

Chinese Mainland
[EES NSV
i

Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Chinese Mainland
AR A RO T F B R B R B 349 S MODO F R %
oK RE 1661612 16131614 1615 1616

z=
=23
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Company Directory
NE)EE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Hong Kong Head Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
10 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong, China

Tel: +852 2693 1663

Fax: +852 2694 0877

Website: https://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:
No. 9 Dai Shun Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong, China

Tel.: +852 2660 0208
Fax: +852 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory:

No. 25, Chiling Section,

Bolan Avenue, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 769 8558 8755
Zip: 523940

Fax: +86 (0) 769 8558 1756

No.| I3, Siheng Road, Zhuanyao Industrial Zone,
Wentang, Dongcheng District, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 769 2316 6636

Zip: 523121

Fax: +86 (0) 769 2316 3608
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Guangzhou Office:

A1806, Center Plaza,

No. 161 Linhe Road West,
Tianhe District,

Guangzhou,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 20 3831 0226
Zip: 510620

Fax: +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, 16th Floor,

Zhao Feng Universe Building,

No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road,
Shanghai,

The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6440 3351

Zip: 200235

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave.,
Qingpu Industrial Zone,
Shanghai,

The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6921 3333
Zip: 201707

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone,

Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 532 8727 3101
Zip: 266300

Fax: +86 (0) 532 8727 3110
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Xiamen Factory:

No. | 6-4 Putou Road,

Haicang District,

Xiamen City, Fujian Province,
The People’s Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 592 609 321 |
Zip: 361027

Fax: +86 (0) 592 609 3600

Chengdu Office:

Room 2919, Building B,

Longhu 3000 Constellations,

No. 2 Jianshe North Road Section 3,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,
The People’s Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 28 8328 5026

Zip: 610051

Fax: +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

Tianjin Office:

Units 2204-2206, Tower A, Ronghui Plaza,
Nankai District,

Tianjin,

The People's Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 22 8752 8026

Zip: 300073

Fax: +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

Chonggqing Office:

Room 3601, Yingli International Financial Center,
No. 28 Minquan Road,

Yuzhong District, Chongging,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 23 6382 0020

Zip: 400010

Fax: +86 (0) 23 6382 0090

Vietnam Hanoi Office:

Room 24, 8th Floor, AC Building,
No. 3, Alley 78, Duy Tan Street,
Dich Vong Hau Square,

Cau Giay District, Hanoi City,
Vietnam

Tel: +84 (0) 35 5350080

Vietnam Hai Phong Office:

No. 3, Le Thanh Tong Street,

May To Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City,
Vietnam

Tel.:+84 (0) 33 7191920
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Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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